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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L01132WB1893PLC000742

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 132nd Annual General Meeting ofthe Members of the Company will be
held on Friday, the 1"t August, 2025, at 1 1:30 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing ("VC") /Other Audio
Visual Moans ("OAVM") to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement ofthe Company for the year ended

3lst March, 2025 together with the Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and in this
regard, pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this
meeting, be add are hereby considered and adopted."

2. To declare dividend on Equity Share of the Company and in this regard, pass the following
resolution asy'n Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLV .ES TIIAT a final dividend for financial year 2024-25 of Rs.7.00 per equity shares
with applioq6le deduction of tax at source thereon to the eligible shareholders whose names will
appear in the Register of Members, as recommended by the Board of Directors be and is hereby
considered and approved."

3. To decide not to fill the vancancy caused due to retirement by rotation of Mrs. Sumana
Raychaudhuri (DIN : 07308451) and to consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without

' modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

' "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,2013 and
rules framed thereunder, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri @IN: 07308451), a Director of the
Company who retires by rotation and who does not offer herself for re-appointrnent, be not re-
appointed as a Director ofthe Company and the vacancy, so caused on the Board ofthe Company,
be not filled up."

SPECIAL BUSINESS
4 Consider and approve appointment of Mrs. Shikha Gupta (DIN : 10654047) as a Non-

Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation

To consider, and ifthought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ofSection 152 and 160 ofCompanies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other
applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment thereofforthe time being in force) and basis ofthe recommendation
ofNomination & Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Qompany, the consent
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mrs. Shikha Gupta (DIN:
10654047), who was appointed by the Board of Direotors as an Additional Director with effect
from 30th June, 2025 and who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company
has received a notice in writing from a Member under Section 160(l) of the Act signifting his
intention to propose Mrs. Gupta's candidature for the office of Director, as a Non-Executive
Director ofthe Company, liable to retire by rotation, from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual
General Meeting of the Company for Financial Year ended 31't March, 2025 till the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 3l* March,2027.
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RESoL\'ED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do a1 actsand take all such steps as may be necess".y, p."pr;;;;dient to give effect to this resorution.,,
Prior approval for related party transactions repetitive iD nature and in the ordinarv courseof business of the Company for the next f Z Uooifr. 

-p"riod 
.l

To consider, and ifthought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an ordinary Resorution:*R-EsoLvED THAT pursuant to. the provisions of Section lgg of the companies Act, 2o13("Act") and other applicable provisions,if any,;;ilii-rl" i;f *Ji;}ufitJiirll,,n* o,Board and its powers) Rures,20.t+, ur urn.nj"d;rr Jui",'n"gurut ion 23(4)of the Securities andE;change*Board of India (Listing obrigations *J oir"rlrrr. Requirements) Regurations, 20r5("Listing Regulations") and the compan-y's policy 
"" 

n"iri.a party transacrion(s) and Materialiryof Related Party Transactions, and bu.ir ri" uppio"uJoiii" arai, cormittee and recommendationof the Board of Directors of the companv, d;.rr;i;isi;"r,ora"., ue -Ji.'r,"."iv ""*ra"a,,the Board of Directors of the company'io 
"nt". 

irt" ."rt 
""tt.y 

arrangement(s/ iransaction(s)with M/s' Norben Tea & Exporrs lia', a .etateJ pa*y ;ili, the meaning of Section 2(76) of theAct,and Regulation 2(t)(zb) of tf," lirtirg--n"!i1ii"rr,''o advance loan, on such terms andconditions as the Board of Directors may dee-m fit]up to a maximum aggregate varue of Rs.5 croreg-]!: *"1.,i? months period in ore or;;;#;;, provided that the said contract(s/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm-,s length basis anJi,,r," 
".oir".ycourse of buslness ofthe Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is herebyauthodzed to-do all such acts, deeds, matters and thingr *ii,,uy a"",n fit in its absolute discretionand to take all such steps as may be required rn trrir c-onr""iion including finalizing and executingnecessary contract(s), arangement(s), agreement(s) and such other d".ri,"rt. 
"r.i"v 

i"-requi."a,to finalize any documents and writingsielatea dr"i"t" *Jt" sign and file necessary documents,e-form with Registrar orCompanies,4ice portal, se;ki;g;[ n".*.rrury uppro"u-r. a'gii,l 
"rr.", 

rothis resolution, for and on beharfofthe co,np*y, to a"'r.gute aI or any of its powers conferredunder this resolution to anv Director.or Key Managerial p?rsonnet or any olficer / executive ofthe company and to resolve all such issues, q""r,"rii-ai#"rrties or doubts whatsoever thar mayarise in this regard and alr action(s) r.k." by ih; C;;;i.,fii .onr".tion with any maner referredto or contemplated in this resorution, be and are heriby approved, ratified and confirmed in allrespects."

Consider and recommend appoin^tment of ll[/s. Agarwal A & Associates, CompanySecretaries as Secretarial Auditor of the Cornpurry. 
- -'--

To consider, and ifthought fit, to pass the following Resorution as an ordinary Resorution:

:'I3o-!vEP THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the companies Act 2or3("Act") and other applicabre provisions, if any, real ;a;i" 9 of the companies ffioint.."nt.and Rernunerarion of Manaseriar personnel) Iiules 20 t4 as amended tiu date, n"gr'iiil., i;e ofthe securities and Exchangl aoaia ortnaia 1r.irti,g ourieutions and Discrosure Requirements)Regulationq 
.2015 ("Listing Regurations") anJ;".i,;f;; recommendation of the Board ofDirectors ofthe Co',puny, app.ouar ofSharehorders b"uni i, h"r"by u"corded to appoinl cs AjayKumar Agarwar (c'p' No. 13493/ M. f". y6gg r.oprieto. of IVf/s Agarwal A & Associates,

fomqaryflcletaries, having a peer Review cerriit"ut"ii issztzozr issieo ty irr. p".i n*i.*Board of ICSI, as Secretariar Auditor of the company to 
"onau"t 

Secretarial Audit for a term offive consecutive vears from the Financiar v*, zois-iilin the Financiai y;;^'z(Jzs-io', x 
"remuneration as mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.
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RESOLYED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its

Committee thereofl and / or Company Secretary ofthe Company, be and are hereby authorised to

do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient

to give effect to this resolution."

Regd. Office :

l5El, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001

Date: 30th June, 2025

NOTES:

BY Order ofthe Board

FoT TONGANI TEA COMPAIYY LIMITED

sd/-
MANOJKUMARDAGA

Chairman
DIN: 00123386

1

/.
The relevant Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act,20I3
(,Act'), setting out the material facts relating to the aforesaid Resolutions and the reasons thereof is

annexed hereto and forms part ofthis Notice.

I
The Ministry/rof corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its circular Nos.20l2020, 1012022,0912023 and

OtinOZq iii"dt"tuy i,ZOZO,28thDecember,2022,25th September,2123 and 19h September,2124,

respeotively, and other circulars issued in this respect ("MCA Circulars?') allowed, inter-alia,

"ondt "t 
of eGMs through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means ("VC/ OAVM") facility

on or before 30th Septeirber 2025, in accordance with the requirements provided in- paragraphs 3

and 4 of the MCA General Circular No.20l2020. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

also vide its circular No.SEBI/HO/CFDIPoD-2|P/C1N202314 dated 5m January 2023 ("SEBI

Circular") has provided certain relaxations from compliance with certain provisions ofthe SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations'). In

l".pfi"*"..titf, these Circulars, provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and SEBI (Listing

obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 132'd AGM ofthe company is

bein! held through VC/OAVM, which does not require physical presence of members at a common

venue.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register 
-of 

Members and

the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 26v July ' 2025 to

Friday, 1,, August, 2025 (both days inclusive) for determining the entitlenunt of the shareholders

for tie tlivideid for Financial Year 2024-25, if declared at the meeting'

Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for appointment of
proxies by tie mernbers wilt not be available for this AGM and hence the Attendance Slip, Route

Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

The Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i'e'l5B

il;^* iiu* Sururi. 3d Floor, Kolkata - 7OOO01 *tti"h shall be deemed to be venue of the

meeting.

Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are requested

to sind a scanned copy ofthi board resolution (pdfljpeg format) authorizing their representative to

attend and vote on tireir behalf at the Meeting. The iaid Board Resolution/Authorization shall be

s"nt to the Company by email through its registered email address to investorcare@.tonsanitea.com

2
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7. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through an
electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules,2014 as presently in force and the business set out
in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information.and instructions including
details ofuser id and password relating to e-voting are provided in the Notice under Note No.23.

8. The dividend, if declared by the Members at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid to those

Members whose names shali appear on the Company's Register of Members as on Friday, 25th July,
2025. In respect ofshares held in dematerialised form, the dividend will be payable on the basis of
beneficial ownership as at the close ofbusiness hours on Friday, 25s July, 2025, as per the details

fumished by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(rndia) Limited (cDSL).

9. Securities and Exchange Board of India vide their Master Circular No.SEBL/FIO/]vIIRSD/POD-
llPlCIN2024/37 dated May 07, 2024 has mandated for all shareholders of physical securities in
listed companiep to furnish PAN, Choice of Nomination, Contact details (Postal Address with PIN
and Mobite Nriiaber), Bank A/c details and Specimen signature for their corresponding folio
numbers. To lodge grievance or avail any service request from the RTA only after funishing PAN,
KYC details an'd Nomination. Relevant details and forms prescribed by SEBI in this regard are

available on thp website of the Company at www.tonsanitea.com. For any payment including
dividend, inte#st or redemption payment made only through electronic mode with effect from April
1,2024.

10. Membqrs ale requested to note that under section 124 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor

, Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules,2016

. (IEPF Rules) the amount ofdividend ifany unpaid or unclaimed for a period of7 (seven) years from

: the due date is required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

constituted by the Central Govemment of India. Further, all shares in respect of which dividend
' remain unclaimed for 7 consecutive years or more, are also required to be transferred to the IEPF.

. The Company had accordingly tmnsferred final dividend pertaining to the Financial Y ear 2016-17

to the IEPF within the stipulated time period. The unclaimed final dividend in respect of financial
year 2Ol7-18 is due for transfer to the IEPF in November, 2025. Further, no claim shall lie against

the Company in respect ofany amount of unpaid dividend transferred to IEPF after completion of
seven years.

Members who have neither received nor encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the financial year

2017-18 or subsequent years, are requested to write to the Company, mentioning the relevant Folio
number or DP ID and Client ID, for issuance of duplicate/revalidated dividend warrant(s).

I 1. Members holding shares in physical form may intimate the Company necessary particulars for ECS

credit of the dividend directly to their bank accounts wherever ECS facility is available, or, for
printing of their bank account details on the dividend warrants to prevent possibilities of fraud in
encashing the warrants.

12. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their address

alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA), Niche
Technologies Pvt. Ltd. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to send the

intimation for change ofaddress / bank mandate to their respective Depository Participant.

13. Members who hold shares in physicat form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in

the same order of names are requested to write to the Company's RTA, enclosing their share

certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their holdings into a single folio. Requests for
consolidation ofshare certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form.

n
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy liquidity
since trading of shares ofthe Company are under compulsory demat mode as per the regulation of
SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already complied with, please

ignore this).

Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBYHO/MIRSDA4IRSD RTAMB IPICIR/202218 dated 25n January 2022has mandated the listed
companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests, viz.
Issue of duplicate securities certificate; renewal/ exchange of securities certificate; endorsement;

sub-division/splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificateVfolios;
transmission and transposition. Further, SEBI vide its Circular No.
SEBVHOA4IRSDA4IRSD-RTAMB/P\CIN2O22\65 dated l8th May 2022 has simplified the
procedure and standardized the format of documents for transmission of securities. Accordingly,
members are requested to make service requests by submiuing a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4
& ISR-5, as the case may be. The said form can be downloaded from the website ofthe Company
and RTA. /,

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notiff the
Company ofan! change in address or demise ofany member as soon as possible. Members are also

advised not to lpave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement ofholdings should
be obtained frffi the concemed Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

Details undei Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and as per Para 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard 2, issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director seeking appointment and re-appointment
at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of the notice. Directors have fumished the
requisite declaration for their appointment and re-appointment.

Details under Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, in respect ofthe Secretarial Auditors seeking appointment at the Annual General

Meeting, form an integral part ofthe notice.

Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 132"d Annual General Meeting of the

Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all the members

whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication
purposes.

In terms of SEBI Circular No.SEBVFIO/CFDIPoD-21P1CLN202314 dated 56 January, 2023 and

dated lgth September,2O24 utdMCA Circulars owing.to the difficulties involved in despatching of
physical/hard copies of full annual report to shareholders are being sent in electronic mode to
members those email address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant (s). The

members who have not updated their email address are requested to do so immediately since t}re

requirement ofsending physical copies of annual report are dispensed with.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under

Section 170 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and the Register ofConhacts and Arrangements in which
Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 ofthe Act and all other documents referred

to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode.

Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in respect of
shares held by them Pursuant to section 72 ofthe Companies Act 2013. The prescribed Form (Form

SH 13) can be obtained from the website of the company i.e. www.tonqanitea.com as well as from

5
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23.

the Share Departrnent of the company. Members desiring to avail this facility, may send their

Nomination Form (in duplicate) ariy ntt"a in, to the C_ompany or its Share Transfer Agents IWs'

Niche Technologies pvt.LtA. oi 3A,-Auckland Place, 7s Floor, Room No.7A & 78, Kolkata - 700

017 by quoting their respective Folio Numbers'

SEBI and Ministry of corporate Affairs encourages paperless communication as a contribution to

Green environmerrt. Vemt"rs t oiJirj tftu.", l" p-frysicai mode ute ."quested to register their e-mail

address to the nTA for receiving all c6mmunications including annual reports, notices,circulars etc'

t* ifr" "o.p*y 
ele"tronicaiiy. Merobe.. who wish to regiiter their e-mail id can download the

green initiativi form from the company's website www'tonganitea'com'

Members may also note that the Notice of the l32nd Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report

f* iOZq-ZS" *n I also be available on the Company's website www.tonganitea.com for their

a"*ri*a. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company's

investor email id: investorcare@Ion gan itea.com

1

CDSL e-Votirlg System - For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings'-e. 
you u." awlre the general meetin[s ofthe companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines

issued bv the Minisrry of Cor?orate iffuirt 6r Cn) vide Circular No .2012020, 1012022,0912023

;;ft;/id;;;il"O^r,,-rori,rt^D"".*1",, z6zz,zsh September,2023and Ien September'

ilt,-;p;e,fi;;ly. fn" nnnuui Ceneral Meeting will thus be held through video conferencing

avei o. Ah;. audio visual means (oAVM). ttence, Members can attend and participate in the

ensuing Annual General Meeting rhrough VC/OAVM'

, puriuant to the provisions of section 108 of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

companies (Management and Administration) Rules,2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of

igsi Girring OUli-gations & Disclosure Requiiements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA

Ci."rfur. autia apr-it OS, zOZO, ^a.pril 13, 20i0 and M ay 05,2020theCompany is providingfacilitv

of remote e-voting to its l\a"mb".s in respect ofthe buiiness to be transacted at the Annual General

fti".iirg. f", tfri. pu.por", the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository
'sr*i."?<ifiirl 

rimiiea tcosrl ioriacilitating voting through electronic means,as the authorized

i-vorj;;;;"1"'"r. rhe facility Lf casting votei by airember using retot" glot'l!l-t well as the

"_uotinf 
,yri""* on the date ofthe Annuil General Meering will be provided by CDSL.

.TheMemberscanjointheAnnualGeneralMeetingintheVC/OAVMmode15minutesbefore
and after the scheduled time of the 

"orn."n."."nt 
of the Meeting by following the procedure

mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the Annual General Meeting through

VC/OAVIvI will be made available to atleast 100b members on first come first served basis' This

*iti ,oi in"tua" large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,

Institutional Invest6rs, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel' the Chairpersons of the Audit

Co.ritt"", No.ination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,

Auditors etc. who are alloweJ to attend the Annual General Meeting without restriction on account

of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the Annual General Meeting through vc/oAVM will

u".orrt"a for the purpose of ascertaininlg the quorum under section 103 of the companies Act,

2013.

pursuant to MCA Circular No. 1412020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend

*J."rt vote for the members is not availabli for this Annual General Meeting. However, in

pri.r*r" Li Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act,2013, representatives of the

'."rt"r. such as the President of India or the Governoi of a State or body corporate can attend

it. l,rrra General Meeting through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

2
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6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Cireular No . 1712020 dated April 13,2020,
the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website of the Company
at www.tonganitea.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites ofthe Stock Exchange
i.e. CSE timited at www.cse-india.com. The Annual General Meeting Notice is also disseminated
on the website ofCDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system
during the Annual General Meeting) i.e. www.evotineindia.com.

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSLA.ISDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

/(D The voting period begins on 296 July, 2025 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 31't July,2025 (5.00 p.m.).

During this'period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 25fi July,2025 may cast their vote electronically. The

e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholdbis who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the

meeJing venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDiCIR/Pi20201242 dated 09.12.2020, under

Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to

its shareholders, in respect ofall shareholders' resolutions. However, it has been observed that the

participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Cunently, there are multiple e-voting service providers @SPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user

IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has

been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

Step I : Access through Depositories CDSLA.{SDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBVHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P 120201242 dated December 9,2020 on

e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat

mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/i.{SDL is given below:

7



Type of
shareholders
Individual
Shdreholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication. The users to login to Easi / Easiest are
requested to visit cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
My Easi New (Token) Tab.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page ofthe e-Voting service provider for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the
system ofall e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.

3) Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl
website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & My Easi New (Token) Tab
and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registeied Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account.
After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option
where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of
all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
withNSDL
Depository

you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-
Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once
the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the.,Beneficial Owner,, icon
under "Login" which is available under.IDeAS, section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID and password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on ..Acctjss to e-
Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-

' directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period orjoining virrual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) Ifthe user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS ,.portal or click

IdeasDirectRes.iso.com/SecureWeb/at https://eservices.nsdl

l) rf
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(v)

1)

2)

3)

4)

s)

6)

Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.
The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
Click on "Shareholders" module.

Now enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the

Company.

Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

Ifyou are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

Ifyou are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

After entering these details appropriately, click on *SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation'

menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password

field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions ofany other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts

for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the

option "YES/l.,lO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation
box will be displayed. Ifyou wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote,

click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modifr your vote.

(vi)

. (vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)
(xiD

For Fhysical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in DemaL

PAN En{er your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

,, . Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the CompanylDepository
Panicipant are requested to use the sequence number sent by CompanylRTA' or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend

Bank

Details

OR Date of
Birth
(DoB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded
in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

o If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

once you "cONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modifu your vote.

You can also take a print ofthe votes cast by clicking on ..click here to print , option on the voting
page.

Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

GvD There is also an optional provision to upload BR/PoA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xvii) Additional Facility for Non - Individual shareholders and custodians -For Remote voting
only.

Non-Individual
required to lbg

shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are
a

a
on to www.evotinAindia.com and register themselves in the ..Corporates,, module.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to h6l sk.evo com

t 4fter receiling the to.gin details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password.lhe Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for wf,ich they wish to vote
on-

o The 'list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of
any wrong mapping.

' - o It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (pOA) which
they have issued in favour ofthe Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in pDF format in the'system' for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

o Altematively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc; together with afieJted specimen signature ofthe duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer ind to the bornp-y at the email address
viz;investorcare@tonganitea.com, ifthey have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to veriS the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE A}INUAL GENERAL MEETING
THROUGH V,C/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day ofthe Annual General Meeting is
same as the instructions mentioned above for e_voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have 'i'oted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeiing.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / lpads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Intemet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may exierience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind ofaforesaid glitches.
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7. shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions- during^the meeting may register

themselves as a speaker ;;;;il;;h"tt request in.ad;ance atleast 10 days prior to meeting

mentioning their name, itlnui u"l"o*t nu'bt'/folio number' email id' mobile number at

investorcare@tongunlt"u.*.. ihe shareholders who do not wish to speak during the Annual

GeneralMeetingUrtt","q"ti"tmaysendtheirqueriesinadvancel0dayspriortomeeting
mentioning tt ei. num", Al.ui- u"l"i,J nr-t"r/iolio number, email id, mobile number at

investorcare@tong*it"i..i*. ifr"se queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email'

g: Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express

their views/ask questions during the meeting'

g.onlythoseshareholders,whoarepresentinlheAnnualGeneralMeetingthroughVC/oAVM
facility and have not *rt"i-tr,"i. *te on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are

otherwiseno!barredr.".a"r"g'",shallbeeligibletovotethroughe-Votingsystemavailable
during the Ahnual General Meeting'

10. Ifany votegtre cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the Annual General

Meeting andl if the ,"."'.rr-"*-tt"rar* hur" rit participated in the meeting through vc/oAVM

facility, th96 the votes "urity 
,urr, shareholders may 

-be 
considered invalid as the facility of e-

*,iri ir"_.lng il," meetinfis a:vailable only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PRoCESSFoRTHosESHAREIIoLDERSwIIoSEEMAIL/IVIoBILENo.ARENoT
nBCiSTNNTU WITH TIIE COMPA}IY/DEPOSITORIES

l.I.orPhysicalshareholders-pleaseprovidenecessarydetailslikeFolioNo.,Nameofshareholder,scanned
copy of the share certifi;; frt"* ti"i t"9t1' reN.iself attested scarmed copy of PAN card)' AADHAR

irJ# rnot.A..u*ea copy oi Ruan* Card) 6y email to Company/RTA email id'

2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository

3.ForlndividualDematshareholders-Pleaseupdateyouremailirl&mobileno.withyour
respective Depository rarti"ipaiiffi;hic; is;anaatorywhile e-voting & joiningvirtual meetings

IfyouhaveanyqueriesorissuesregardingattendingAnnualGeneralMeeting&e-VotingfromtheCDSL
e-Voting system, you "r, 

*"i"'ri "*uii 
io helod'esk.evotine@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no'

through DePository.

1800 21 09911

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh

Dalvi, Sr. Manag er, (CDSL, ) Central DePository Servi ing, 25th Floor, Marathon

Futurex, Mafatlal MillCompounds,NMJ oshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an

email to heipdesk.evotine@cdslindia'com or call toll free no. 180021 099 11.

I Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are attending

itre meeting wilt not be entitled to cast their vote again'

Investors who became members of the Company subse^qu€nt to the Notice of Annual General

ii;;;il;;i il;il una norat trr" 'r'*.1" "i 
*'6 *'-offdate i'e'2ss Jutv'2025 are requested

to send the written / email 
"o..uni"ution 

to ihe Company at investorcare@tonganitea'com

by mentioning their rotio No. iip ip-a'A Cti"nt to io obtui' the Login-ID and Password

for e-voting.

r t')
-L Z.

Participant @P)

II.



III. Shareholder can also update his/her mobile number and email id in the user profile details of
the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

lV. The voting rights ofshareholders shall be in proportion to their shares ofthe paid up equity
share capital ofthe Company as on the cut-off date of 25th Ju1y,2025. A person who is not a
member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only.

V. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries of Plot No.IID/31/1, Street No. 1111, PS

Qube, Unit No. I 015A, 10rh Floor, Kotkata- 700161 has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting process to be carried out at the Annual General
Meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

VI. The Scrutinizer will submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in
favour' or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company within 2 working days from the
conclusion of the meeting.

VIL The Chairman shall declare the result forthwith. The Results declared along with the
Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.tonganitea.iomand on
the website of CDSL and communicated to Stock Exchange, immediately.

I

. Name of the Director Mrs. Shikha Gupta
Director Identification Number (DIN) 10654047
Date of Birth 03-08-1981
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment on the Board 30-06-2025
Designation Non-Executive Additional Director

Qualifications Company Secretary
Appointment as NIID liable to retire
hv rotation

Expertise in specific functional area Law, Accounts, Finance

Number of shares held in the Company Nil
List of the directorships held in other
companres

4

Number of Board Meetings attended
during the year 2024-25

Nil

Chairmanships / Memberships
Committees of other listed companies*

of

Relationships between Directors inter-se None

Fees & Commission)
Nit

* Cornmittee positions only Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee in Public

Companies have been considered.

A7

Annexure to Notige
Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the fo(hcoming Annual General Meeting

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) ofthe SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetingsl

Terms of Appointment

None

Remuneration details (Including Sitting



Annexure to Notice

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.,l
The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee)
appointed Mrs' Shikha Gupta (DIN: 10654047) as an Additional Director (category: Non-Executive
Non-Independen0 of the company with effect from 306 1"i", iozs- 

-ia'*i" "#a, office till the
conclusion of this 132nd Annual General-Meeting (AGM) in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
'013' 

The company received a notice from a liernber under Section 160 of the io.p*i"r Act,2013,
signifying-his intention to propose the candidature of Mrs. Shikha Gupta for the office ifNon-Executive
Director of the Company.

Mrs' Shikha Gupta aged u!9r1.41 v_.-u.t, Company Secretary having Membership No.F7666 of Instituteofcompany Secretaries of India (ICSD ana cF NL.zoot0. She has irore thun r i'y"., 
"rp.rience 

in thefield of Law, Accoqnts, Finance matters.

Mrs' Shikha Gupta $oes not hold by herselfor for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in theCompany. ,,'

I

ln: I .^ 
D,ilector fi. Spinaroo Commercial Limited, Shree Bahubali Stock Broking Limited, Manilam

lndustres lndia Limited and Swati projects Limited. she is not a Member in any coirpany.

The other tetails of Mrs. Shikha Gupta in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and
Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice.

Mrs. Shikha Gupta is not related to any Director of the Company.

, In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section I 52, the tsoard of Directors is of the opinion that Mrs.
Shikha Gupta fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for her appointment as Non-Exlcutive Director.
After taking into consideration the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, the

i PC,* 
is of the opinion that Mrs..Gupta's vast knowledge and varied experience will be of great value to

the company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.4 olthis Notice relating to thJappointment
of Mrs. Gupta, as "Non-Executive Director", liable to retire by rotation commencing"from the conclusion
olthis Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 6r the Financial year
ended 3 1't March , 2027 , for yow approval.

The Company has received:-

(D her consent in writing to act as Director and
(iD intimation that she is not disqualified under secti on 164(2) ofthe Companies Act, 2013..(iii) a declaration to the effect that she is not debaned from holding the office of Director

pursuant to any Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (SEBI).
A copy of the dra{t letter for the appointment of Mrs. Gupta, as Non-Executive Director setting out the
terms & conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the RJgistered
Olfice ofthe Company during normal businesi hours on any wori<ing aay.

Mrs. Gupta is concerned or interested in the resolution ofthe accompanying notice relating to her own
appointment.

None ofthe other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are concerned or interested
in the Resolution at item no.4.

Tq

2013 ("Act")
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IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.s
In terms of Regulati on 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

201 5, (SEBI Listing Regulations'), as amended, any transactions with a related party shall be considered

material, if the transaction(s) entered into/to be entered into individually or taken together with the

revious transactions during a financial year exceeds Rs.l,000 crore or 10% of annual consolidated

turnover ofthe Company as per the last audited financial statem ents of the Company, whichever is lower,

shall require prior approval of shareholders by means of an ordinary resolution. The said limits are

applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe concerned company and

at an arm's length basis. The amended Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations has also

enhanced the definition of related party transaction which now includes a transaction involving a transfer

of resources, services or obligations between (i) a listed entity or any of its subsid iaries on one hand and

a related party ofthe listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand, as well as (ii) a listed entity

or any of its subsidi aries on one hand and any other person or entity on the other hand, the purpose and

effect of which is to benefit any related party of the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries, regardless of
whether a price is clarged or not. Further, contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) proposed to be

entered into with the ietated party in the ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe Company & on arms' length

basis for the next 12 Ponths basis are required to be placed before the Members for their approval before

such contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) are given effect to.

ltemsIt is in the above that, Resolution No(s) 5 is placed for the approval of the Members of the Company'

Item No. 5:

Background, details and benefits of the transaction

M/s. Norben Tea & Exports Ltd (NTEL) is engaged in the business of growing & manufacturing of tea,

is your promoter Group 
-Company. 

To make a short term investment eaming a competitive rate of interest,
'your Company proposes to entei into transaction(s) with lWs Norben Tea & Exports Ltd', which is a

iromoter broup co*p*y of your company. Accordingly, transaction(s) with NTEL comes within the

; meanins of Related Party transactionls) in terms of provisions of the Act, applicable Rules framed

/ ih"r"uri". ..ud with the iisting Regulations. The amount to be advanced to NTEL will be unsecured and

re-payaUte on demand at an inter6st rate prevailing in the market. The total value of the proposed

transiction(s) could reach Rs. 5 Crore during the next 12 months period'

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under law, of
RpTs prop-osed to be entered into by your Company with NTEL in the financial yeat 2025'26 including

rationale, material terms and basis ofpricing. The Audit Committee, after discussion and deliberation, has

granted approval for RPTs with NTEL foi an aggregate value ofup to Rs. 5 crore to be entered during

frVZcDS-ie . The Committee has noted that the said transactions will be on an arms' lengh basis and in

the ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe Company.

Now, approval ofthe shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaction(s) proposed to

be enteied into by your Company with NTEL for the next 12 months period.

Details of the transactions with NTEL, being a related party of the Company, including the information
pursuant to Rule l5 of Companies (Meetings ofBoard and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date,

and SEBI Circular No.SEBVHO/CFD1CMDI/C[NP1202I/662 dated November 22,2021 are as follows:

{4-
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DetailsDescri tionst.
Details of S of information the ent to the Audit Committeevided

ItI/s Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. is a Promoter

Company of M/s Tongani Tea ComPanY

Ltd.("Company")

GroupName ofthe related party and its relationship
with ihe listed entity or its subsidiary,
including nature of its concem or interest

financial or otherwise
Manoj Kumar Daga, Director of M/s Tongani Tea

Com Ltd. t'Com an
Name of the Director or KMP who is
related

b

Contract to grant loan not
one or more tranches (up to a value ofRs.1 Crore per

transaction). Loan shall be unsecured, repayable on

demand and rate of interest shall

exceeding Rs.5 crore in

be 10% annum.

Nature, material terms, monetary
and particulars of the contract or

arrangement

value

Not fixed. The loan shall be repayable on availability

of li uid
d Tenure of the Tiansaction

U to Rs. 5 croreValue oftransaction
60.12%Percentage of annual consolidated

tumover of lv{/s Tongani Tea Company

Ltd consideiing FY2024-25 as the
immediate ear.financial

Please refer to 'Background, detai

the transaction' which forms part ofthe statement to
ls and benefits of

the resolution No.5

the transactionJustification
,1!

Detail,s of transaction relating to any corporate deposits, advances or investments

or its subsidthe listed entilvenmade or

loans, inter-

details of the source of funds in
sed transactionconnection with the

where any financial inde

incurred to make or give loans, inter-

corporate deposits, advances or

investments
- nature of indebtedness;
- cost of funds; and
- tenure

btedness is

Loan shall be unsecured, repayable on

rate of interest shall be 10% per annum.
demand and

applicable terms, including covenants,

tefiure, interest rate and repayment

schedule, whether secured or unsecured;

if secure the nature of securi
The fund shall be used for short term business

purpose.
the purpose for which the funds

utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of
ursuant to the RPT

will be

such funds

1V.

Not Applicable4 A statement that the val

extemal report, if any, relied upon by the

listed entity in relation to the proposed

transaction will be made available through

uation or other

e-mail dershareholthessaddre oftered
All important information
statement setting out material facts, pursuant to

Section 102(1) ofthe Companies Act,2013 forming

forms part of the

of this Notice.

5 Any other information
Relevant

that may be

L6
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The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related parties
as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the afo.esald transactions or not), shall
not vote to approve resolutions under Item No.5.

None ofthe Directors and Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company or their respective relatives, otier
than as mentioned above is concemed or interested, financially oi otherwise, in the resolution mentioned
at Item No.5 of the Notice.

Basis the consideration and approval of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommend the
Ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No.5 of the accompanying Notice to the shareholders for
approval.

Details of Secretarial Auditor seeking appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
lPurs_ua1t to Reguiation 36(5) of ti" sisl (Lilin; obtigation ani Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015.

ll*-*I9 d-r-i*ctgrs of the Companyat its meeting held on 30th June, 2025, recommended appointment
oI us AJay Kumar Agarwal (c.p. No. 13493 / M. No. F7604) proprietor of M/s Agarwal A &
Associates, Comp-anl'- Secretaries, having a Peer Review Certificate no ilg2/zozt issuedly the peer
Review Board of IQSI, as Secretarial Auditor ofthe Company to conduct Secretarial Audit foi a term of
five consecutive ygays from the Financial Y ear 2025-26 tillthi Financial year 2029-30,r, , ,.r*"r"ii*
as mutually agreed ppon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors.
Briefprofile and ihe terms of appointment are detailed as under:

BriefProfih
IWs. Agarwal A & Associates,^is a professional practising Company Secretary firm in Kolkata having a
Peer Review Certificate No.1592/2021, issued by the Peei Review 

-goarO 
of iCSt and was incorporaled

in the year 2014 by Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal iMembership No.F7604 and cp No.13493). Mr. Ajay
[umar Agarwal is a graduate in BSC Electronics, a qualified Company Secretary and'insolvency
professional.

,.Terms of appointment and fee

i T:-!"11 o{fice of the Secretarial Auditor for a term of five consecutive years from the Financial year
2025'26 till the Financial Year 2029-30, at a remuneration as mutually agreed upon by the Board of
Directors and the Auditors.

The fee for the year 2025-26 of }y',/s. Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, for Secretarial Audit
is being discussed and once approved by Board, is expected to be ui to Rs.75,000/- excluding out of
pocket expenses and taxes.

None ofthe Directors and Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company or their respective relatives, other
than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, financially oiotherwise, in the resolution mentioned
at Item No.6 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors have.recommended the Ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No.6 of the
accompanying Notice to the shareholders for approval.

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.6

Regd.Office:
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3d Floor,
Kolkata - 700 001

By Order ofthe Board
FoTTONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

sd/_
MANOJKUMARDAGA

Chairman
DIN:00123386

Date : 30s June, 2025
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: L01132WB1893PL c000742

REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

TO THEMEMBERS
The Directors are pleased to present the One Hundred Thirty Second Annual Report together with the
Company's Audited Accounts for the Financial year ended 31't March, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR IIIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance of the Company for the year ended on 3lsMarch,2025 is summarized
below:-

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Year Ended

March 31, 2025
Year Ended

March 31,2024

Total Revenue 86254848

Profit SS before Finance C De reciation and Taxation t4157657 10083941
Less : Finance Cost
Profi oss before reciation and Tax

4661158 5810614
9496499 4273327

Less : De reciation
Profi oss b for

3087636 2796631
6408863 1476696

Less : Provision for T IOn

Currerit Tax 719782 193209
MAT Credit

(s76)
Income Tax for earlier ears

Frofi OSS after tax s583r33 r284063

(34249\ 38644t
Income tax relati to these items 8905 (10047s)
Total Conl rehensive Income for the eriod 5557789 1570029
Add : Balance brou t forward from revlous ear 21670320
S lus available for A ro riation 27869263 23240349

Final Dividend on Equity Shares
Balance canied to Balance Sheet 27869263 22311474

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Rains and better tea growing conditions during the later palt of the year helped recover most of the
major loss in crop during the quality period early in the season. Due to mandatory early closure of
plucking, production remained 4% lower than last year whereas prices went up by 15% against previous
year thereby improving the revenue.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY,
There has been no change in the nature ofBusiness ofthe Company during the reported financial year.

4. DIVIDEND
Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Rs.7.00 per Equity Share for the financial year
ended 3l't March,2025, subject to approval ofthe members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

,t ,''_L7)

(Rupees)

95300742

Defered Tax 105928

Other Comprehensive Income
]tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

22311474

APPROPRIATIONS:
928875



5. TRANSFERTO RESERVE
No amount was transfered to general reserve during the financial year ended 31"1 March, 2025.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES / COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the company which
has occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the reporl.

7. SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review the Company has not altered its share capital.

8. INTERNAI CONTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place, an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with its size,
requirements and the nature of operations. These systems are designed keeping in view the nature of
activities location and various business operation.

/
9, DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERT,NCE TO,,THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Being a listed enlity, the financial statements are passing through the Audit Committee and the
processes of lntemgl and External (Tax and Statutory) Audits, before being approved at the meeting of
the Board of Di6ctors of the Company. The financial statements are regularly updated on the
Company's web(,it'e and available to all stakeholders.

10, NAM,ES OF COMPANIES WI{ICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR
As on 31't March, 2025, your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companies.

I1. PUBI..IC DEPOSITS
' The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,

2013.

12. AUDITOR ANDAUDITORS' REPORT
M/s. Lilha & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.328627E) the statutory auditors
of the Compan.v-, will hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the financial year
2025-26.

The report by the Auditors is self-explanatory and has no qualification, resewation, adverse remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board were required.

13. SECRETARIALAUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,2013, and the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the Board has appointed CS Ajay Kumar
Agarwal, Proprietor of Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secretaries, Practising Company Secretary
as its Secretarial Auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit
Report in specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Annexure forming part of
this Report. The Secretarial Audit Report has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board were required.

14. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY AUDITORS
There were no instances ol fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to
report to the Audit Committee and/or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and

the rules made thereunder.

L9



The information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Acq 2013 and Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014, is given as Annexure B in the Annexure forming part ofthis Report.

16. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

15. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

OF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN

In terms of Section 92(3) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 ofthe Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company is avai lable on the website of the

ompany at rrr,'rv.ton ganitea.com/ lrdflextractoftheannu alreturn March 2025.pdfC

17. POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The level of operations of the Company is below to the minimum threshold of Corporate Social
Responsibility reporting.

18. DIRECTORS
At present your Board is duly_ constituted comprising of 5 (Five) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga
(DIN: 00123386), $r. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria (DIN: 05353976), Mrs. Swari Agarwal (DIN: 06804s2-2)
a1d Mrs. sumana Raychaudhuri (DIN: 07308451). on 30th June, 202i, urs. srrikha Gupta
(DIN:10654047) jgined as Non-Executive Additional Director on the Board ofthe Company subjeci to
approval of the mlmbers at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In accordance with the piovisions of
the Companies. Acl, 2013 and the Arlicles of Association of the -ompany, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri,
retires by rotatiorv,at the ensuing.Annual General Meeting and does not offer herselffor re-aipointment,
be not rc-appointed as a Director of the Company and tlle vacancy, so caused on the Board of the
Company,.be not filled up for the time being.

19. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED ORHAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

.' Mr' Ashok Vardhan Bagree (DIN : 00421623) and Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka (0082361 1) having- 
successfully completed 2 terms of 5 years each of being associated with Company in the capacity oi' Independent directors of the Company were retired fromfhe office of Independent Directors with effect
from the conclusion of 131't Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended 3l"t March, 2024 held on
9th August, 2024. The Board placed on record its siniere appreciation for the contributions made by Mr.
Ashok Vardhan Bagree and Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, during their tenure on the Board of the
Company.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria (DIN : 05353976) and Mrs. swati Agarwal (DIN : 06804522) were
appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for the first term of five years
ggmmerrciqg from the conclusion of 13l't Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended 3l't lvlarch,
2024 held on 9th August, 2024.

There has been no change in the Key Managerial personnel during the financial year.

20. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND BOARD'S COMMITTEE
The Board of Directors have met 6 (six) times on 24-05-2024,02-os-2024, og-og-2024, 17 -lo-2024, 11-
11-2024 and,06-02-2025 during the Financial year ended 31.tMarch, 2025. The gap between any rwo
consecutive meetings of the Board of the Company was not more than One Hundied and Twenty Days
(120 days) as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 2015. There was no resolution by
circulation passed by the Board during F.Y.2024-25. The details of the number of board meetings ani
committee meetings attended by each Directors during the financial year 2024-25 is annexed heiewith
as Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

21. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 11-11-2024, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria
the lead Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting reviewed
the performance of the non-lndependent Directors.



22. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Every Independent Director has, at the first meeting of the Board and at the first meeting of the Board
after hisiher appointment, in the financial year 2024-2025, given a declaration as required u/s.149 (7) of
the Companies Act,2013 that he/she meets the criteria of Independence.

23. AUDIT COMIVIITTEE AS REQUIRED U/S.177(8) OF COMPANIES ACT,2013
The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria

(Independent Director), Mrs. Swati Agarwal (Independent Director) and Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri
(Non-Executive Director). Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Chairman of the Committee, has expert

knowledge of finance and accounting.

Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been

accepted by the Board.

24. VIGIL MECHANISM (WIIISTLE BLOWER POLICY)
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for
directors and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI

Listing Regulationsjto reporl concerns about unethical behavior.

The vigil Mechaii,sm (whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the company's website at

www.ton itea. VI il mechanism ton i 2014

25. POLICY ON IRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AND RIMUNERATION ETC,
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining

a director and other matters provided u/s.178(3) ofqualifications, positive attributes, independence of

https://r.vwu,.ton qan itea.com/ pdlltpt tonsani.odf.

AII contracts, arrangements and transactions entered by the Company with related parties during FY
2024- 25 (including any material modification thereof), were in the ordinary course of business and on

an arm's length basis and were carried out with prior approval of the Audit Committee. All related party

transactions that were approved by the Audit Committee were periodically reported to the Audit

Committee. Prior approval of the Audit Committee was obtained periodically for the transactions which

were planned andior repetitive in nature and omnibus approvals were also taken as per the policy laid

down for unforeseen transactions.

The Shareholders approval was obtained under Section 188(1) of the Act and Regulation 23(4) of the

Listing RegulationJ ior material related party transaction. The information on transactions with relaled

partiei puriuant to Section 134(3Xh) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 in Form AOC-2 are disclosed as Annexure E in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

27, DETAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINYESTMENTS BY THE COMPAIYY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company,

have been disclosed in the financial statements'

28. FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARI)
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual

directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation

of the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the

Company is given as Annexure F in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

f

the Compaiies Act,2013 is given as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part of this Report,

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The Company has a well-defined process of identification ofrelated parties and transactions with related

parties, its approval and review process. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as formulated by the
' Audit Committee and the Board is hosted on the Company's website at

11



29. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
a) INDUSTR STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT. OPPORTUNITIES & THR TS AND

a)

India is the second-largest producer of tea globally. Indian tea is one of the finest in the world
owing to strong geographical indications, heavy investment in tea processing units, continuous
innovation, augmented product mix, and strategio market expansion. As of 2022, a total of6.19
lakh hectares of area was cultivated in India for tea production. India is also among the world's
top tea-consuming countries, with 80% of the tea produced in the country consumed by the
domestic population.

The Assam valley and cachar are the two tea-producing regions in Assam. In west Bengal,
Dooars, Terai,and Darjeeling are the three major tea producer regions. The southem part of India
produces about 17Yo of the country's total production with the major producing itates being
Tamil Nadu, Kerala, and Kamataka.

The global te6 production (excluding China) in calendar year 2024 shows decline as compared to
previous year due to lower crop in India and uganda. All India tea production touched a four
year low at 1285 million kgs from 1394 million kgs, primarily due to adverse climatic conditions
which was rfipre prominent in North India where the outpui was lower by 100 million kgs. In
South India,lhe decline is about l0 million kgs. Average tea prices at auction centers in North
India witnessed an increase of around t 41lIQ due to lower supply compare to previous year.
Quality teas continue gaining prominence with thrust on further improving the quality in the
current year.

During the current year iill date, the inclement weatler continues. However, with a forecast of
normal monsoon, higher crop is expected compared to previous year. The demand for better
quality tea is expected to remain good. with growing awareness in the large domestic market on
Food safety requirements, Maximum Residue Level limits and increased monitoring by Food
safety and standards Authority of India (FSSAD prices of compliant teas experienced a
signifi cant upward trained.

The last decade has witnessed tea prices growing at a CAGR of 2.88% only, but trailing the
escalating cost of inputs at 10 to 12% CAGR.

RISKS AND CONCERN
The plantation industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall,
its distribution, temperature, relative humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield.
Since timely information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of
fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are taken at the estate to get the weather information
well in advance.

Global warming and increased incidence of pest and fungal attacks pose a significant threat to
standing tea crops. Restrictions on use of effective Plant Protection Formulae necessitated from
low import tolerances in most importing geographies, coupled with increaiing demands on this
front from certification programs which are necessary to effect sales both in the domestic and
export markets has exacerbated the risk of crop losses under the present climatic conditions.
Increased vigilance, early detection, and Integrated Pest Management practices are critical
factors in mitigating this threat.

OUTLOOK

WISE OR PR D WISE PERFO
The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

b)



c) INTERNAL CONTR L SYSTEMS & THEIRADEOUACY

d)

The Company has adequate intemal control system commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provides reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding
the Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, preventing revenue
leakages and ensuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance with various
statutory provisions.

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests improvements for
strengthening them.

FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERIORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the
Report of the'Directors.

e) N RESOURCE DEVELO TRTAL ATIONS
The Comparry has built its workforce with a diverse background of individuals - essential for the
kind of organization that it is. The company constantly endeavours to provide a platform where
people have,opportunities to aclo;alize their maximum potential through work which helps to
stretch theiri intellect. Continuous efforts are on for a work-culture which encourages innovation,
transparency/in communication, trust and amity.

,l

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking Statements" within

' the meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the currently held
beliefs and assumptions of our management, which are expressed in good faith and in their
opinion, reasonable. Actual results could differ from tlose expressed and implied since the
Company's operations are influenced by many extemal and internal factors beyond the control of
the Company. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company's operations
which includes climatic conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply,
government regulations and taxation, natural calamities, raw material price changes, domestic
supply and prices conditions, company's success in attracting and retaining Key Personnel,
integration and re-structuring activities, general business and economic conditions over which
the Company does not have any direct conrol.

30. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Board of Directors of the Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy for
the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the Board, may
threaten the existence ofthe Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically various aspects of
Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk whose adverse impact may threaten the existenqe
ofthe Company is visualized.

31. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL IIARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every women employee
is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero-tolerance towards sexual harassment inviting
serious disciplinary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policy allows
every employee to freely report any such act and promote action thereon. The policy lays down severe
punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the year under review, there were
no cases ofsexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to the sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

0
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During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or
courts or tribunals impacting the going concem status and company,s operations in fuiure.
33. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In. accordance with the provisions of the Section 134(3)(c) & 134(5) ofthe companies Act,2013, your
Directors confirm that:
a) Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation ofthe Annual Accounts

for the year ended 3l't March,2025 with proper'explanation rilating to material departures, if
any.

b) Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company in respect of the fin-ancial year end-ed 31"t March,
2025 and of the profit ofthe Company for that period.

c) Proper and s4fficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company ahd for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitiis.

d) Annual Accgunts for the year ended 31't March, 2025 have been prepared on the basis of going
concern confept., ///

e) The Directrirs have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
detailing ihe policies and procedures to be followed and these internal financial controls are
adequate and are operating effectively.

0 Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all appticable
lawS and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

34. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS' RI,MUNERATION U/S.197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES'ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF COMPANTES (arrorNrurxT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

32. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
COURTS/TRJBUNALS

ORDERS PASSED BY TIIE REGULATORS/

S.No. Name Designation
o/o increase in
remuneration

Ratio ofthe remuneration of
each director : median

remuneration ofthe
em ees

I Manoj Kumar Daga Dil'ector 0.10: I
2 Ashok VardhanBagree Director 0.05 : 1

Ravindra Kumar Murarka Director 0.05 : I
4 Su chaudhuri Director 0.10: I
5 Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria Director 0.08 : 1

6 Swati Agarwal Director 0.08 : I
7 Sukh Pal Singh CEO 0.00
8 CFO 8.64
9 Company Secretary

^ Director's sitting fees is not considered for the purpose of this calculation.

The Company has 279 employees as on 3l.tMarch,2025.

The company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration ofemployees in the financial year: Nil.
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase in
managerial remuneration is Nil.
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Aiay Kumar Agarwala
Arindam Roy Chowdhury 0.00



Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between Workers
Associations, State Govemment and Representatives of the Tea Industry. Remuneration paid to other
Employees are fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration
Policy of the Company.

35. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31,2025 the Company did not have any employee in the category specified in Rule 5(2) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

36. PREYENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in compliance with the

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. Alt Directors, employees and other designated
persons, who could have access to unpublished price sensitive information ofthe Company are governed

by this code.

The trading window for dealing with equity shares of the Company is duly closed during declaration of
financial results ahd occurrence of any other material events as per the code. During the year under
review there has been due compliance with the code.

I
37. COMPLIAIIICE WITH SECRI,TARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS /
During the yeay/hnder review, the Company has duly complied with the applioable provisions of the

Secretarial Staridards on Meetings ofthe Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued

by The InStitute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSf.

38. SAFETY, IIEALTH & ENVIRONMENT
. The Company has committed to maintaining highest standard of safety, health environment protection

and has complied with all applicable statutory requirements and prevention of pollution. It always

strives to keep the estates greener and cleaner and committed to the safety and health of its employees.

39. LISTING OF SHARI,S
The Company's shares are listed with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. and the listing fees for the year

2025-2026 have not yet been paid.

40. APPRI,CIATION
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Looal Gram
Panchayat, Govemment Departments, Banks and all others. Special thanks and appreciation are

conveyed to State Bank of India, our banker for providing Covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

Regd. Office :

l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001

Date : 300 June, 2025

By Order of the Board
FoT TONGANI TEA COMPAI{Y LIMIt'ED

5al'
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman
DIN:00i23386
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AIINEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXUREA

FORM No. MR3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended On 31't March, 2025
(Pursuontto section 204(1) ofthe Componies Act, 2073 ond Rule No.9 of the Componies

(Appointment ond Remunerotion of Monogeriol Personnel) Rules, 2074)

To,
The Members,
Tongani Tea Company Limited
15-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3'd Floor, Kolkata-100001

we have been apoointed by the Board of Directors of Tongani Tea ' company Limited
(I,0f 132WB189 3P1,C000742) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the

Company for the filoncial year ended 31't March, 2025'

We have conduct# the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to godd corporate practices by Tongani Tea Company Limited (hereinafter called the

Company). having its Registered Office at 15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001,

West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and

, other records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations

, and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and considering the

/' relaxations granted"by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India,' 
we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the hnancial

year ended on March 31,2025, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and

also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

1. We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and retums filed and other

records maintained by Tongani Tea Company Limited ("the company') for the financial year

ended on 31"t March, 2025 according lo the provisions of:

(D

(iD

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations,

circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 CSCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and ByeJaws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made tlefeunder to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, overseas Direct Investment and Extemal

Commercial Borrowings;-(No I appticable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(iiD
(iv)
(v)
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(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 201 1

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Regiskars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirer4ent) Regulations, 20 1 5 ;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations,

2018;
(f) The follgwing Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the Company

as per the Management Representation Letter issued by the Company of even date:

(i) Thd Tea Act,1953 and rules thereunder
(ii) The'Food Safety and Standards Act,2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules 201II'
(iii)ThgTea Waste Control(Order) 1959

(iv)The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003

(v) The Assam Plantation Labour Act, 1951

Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') which are not applicable to the Company during

the financial year under repon:-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations,2018;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 2021;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations.

2008;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulati ons,2021.

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018

L7

3. We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute

of Company Secretaries of India.

(iD The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with The Calcutta Stock Exchange

Limited. read with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015

4. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Cuidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above.



5. We further report that:

a' The Board of Directors olthe Company is duly constituted in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations, maintaining an appropriate balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, and Independent Directors. Based on the information provided, there has been a
change in the composition ofthe Board, specifically the appointment ofan Independent Director,
which has been carried out in compliance with all relevant provisions of the applicabte statutory
and regulatory framework.

b. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining furlher information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

c. Al[ decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are caried unanimously as recorded in
the minutes df the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board. as the case
may be.

!
6. We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of y'le relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on teslcheck basis, the
Company'has l. mplied with the Iaws applicable specifically to the Company.

7. We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size'and operations ol the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,' 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

8. we further report that during the AGM held on 09/0 8/2024, the following appointments were approved:

, a. An appointment of Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria as an Independent Director, to hold office until
the AGM for the financial year 2028-2029.

i b. An appointment of Mrs. Swati Agarwal as an Independent Director, to hold office until the./ AGM for the financial year 2028- 2029.

No actions havo been taken against the listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either
by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI
through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued
thereunder.

We further report that, to the best ofour understanding, that during the audit period there are no specific
events/ actions which have a major bearing on the Company,s affairs.
Place: Kolkata
Date: 30th June, 2025

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES.
Company Secretaries

sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Proprietor
C.P No.:13493
M.No.: F7604

Peer Review No. 1592/2021

UDIN: F007604c000685050

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and tbrms an
integral part of this report.
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,dNNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To,
The Members,
Tongani Tea ComPanY Limited
15-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3'd Floor, Kolkata-700001

Our report ofeven date is to be read along with this letter'

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to exlress an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have foltowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about thejorectness ofthe contents ofthe Secretarial records. The verification was done on

test basis to ensure'tlat correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes

and practices, we fq. owed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not v61ified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books ofAccounts

ofthe comp/ny.

4..Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards

,is the responsibility of managernent. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on

test basis.

i e.lne Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe company nor ofthe
I efficacy or effectiveness *ith *hi"h th".anagement has conducted the affairs of the company'

Place: Kolkata
Date : 30th June, 2025

FoT AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
ComPanY Secretaries

sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Proprietor
C.P No.:13493
M.No.: F7604

Peer Review No. 159212021

UDIN: F007604G000685050

L9

.ANNEXURE A'
(An integral part of Form No.MR3)



STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULEs 2014

NIL
D The steps taken or impact on conservation ofenergy;

NILii) The steps taken by the compahy for utilizing alternate sources ofenergy;

NILiiD The capital investment on energy conservation equipments'

Techno absor tion
NILi) towards technology absorption;The efforts

NILerived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

develo men rlm rt substitution
The benefitstl)

NILiii)

The details of technolo lm orled
b The ear of im ort

Whether the technolo been full absorbedc

d) Ifnot fully absorbed, at'eas where absorption has not taken place, and the

NILThe expenditure incurred on Research and Development.iv)

C Forei n exchan e earntn and Ou o
NILThe Forei Exchan e earned in terms of actual inflows durin the ear

The Forei n Exchan eOu durin the ear in terms of actual outflows

3O

ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE "8"

A. Conservation of energy

B.

In cm" 
"f ffi;.t"d t*htology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning ofthe financial year) -

reasons thereof; and

NIL

1-

:
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audit Committeir

S.No Date of Mectil1g

I 24-05-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka,
Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri

2 02-08-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka,
Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri

J 09-08-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs.
Swati Agarwal

17 -10-2024 \4r
Sw

. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs.
ati Agarwal

5 11-11-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs.
Swati Agarwal

6 06-02-2025 \4r. Manoj Kurnar Daga, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs
Swati Agarwal

S.No Date ofMeetine AtteDded by

1 24-05-2024 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri
02-08-2024 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri
t1-11-2024 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs. Swati Agarwal

4 06-02-2025 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Sumana Raychaudhuri, Mrs. Swati Agarwal

. s.No Date ofMeehng Attended by

1 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Manoi Kumar Daga, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka

Stakeholders Relationship Comm ittee

S.No Date ofMeetins Attended by

I 24-05-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka
2 02-08-2024 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Ravindra Kumar Murarka

1 I -11-2024 Mr. Manoi Kumar Daga, Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Swati Agarwal
4 06-02-2025 Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria, Mrs. Swati Agarwal

ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE "D"
REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction
The Remuneration Policy ofTongani Tea Company Ltd. (the "Company"), is designed to attract,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value
creation for shareholders.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting shoft and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the wolking ofthe Company and its goals.

31
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ANNEXURE *C"

NO. OF MEETINGS OF TIIE BOARD AND BOARD'S COMMITTEE
The details of the number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each Directors during
the financial year 2024-25 as follows:
Board Meeting

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

2
3

24-05-2024



Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with
comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members' required

competencies, effort and the scope ofthe board function, including the number ofmeetings.
Fixed remuneration

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Director(s) will be done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the

Companies Act, 2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION

Whole Time Director(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic

perquisites which is approved by the shareholders ofthe Company at a General Meeting.

Sitting Fees
The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,

taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the

Company keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and

complexity. '

Incentive Droqramm e" bonus pav. etc.

Presently, the-Company does not have any incentive programme.

Reimbursement otexpcqiec
E><p*q*l4"rr*ttri with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account

rendered, '',
Pension scheme

The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension

scheme.

REMUNERATI ON TO OTHERKEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals concerning the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions

in comparable companies.
Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting

of the following components:
' ' .Fixed salary
' Bonus
.' Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salarv
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically

reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable comDonents
Presently, the company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable

component in the salary structure.
Personal benefits
other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits,

including company car, free telephony, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and

magazines. The extent of individual benefits are not necessarily same for each individual
member of the Executive Management.

Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
. Accident insurance
'' Health insurance
.' Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

-<,



Notice of termination
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice. A member of the
Executive Management can terminate the employment relationship with the Company by giving
a months' notice.
Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or
a defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMI]NERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals conceming the remuneration of
other employdes and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable
companies.
Other Emplolees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components: ',
'. Fixed salag/
' ' Bonus
Fixed salarF
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on perfotmance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Other benefits
Housing/Flousing Repair Al lowance.
Notice of termination
As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or
a defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.

TIIE CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS. POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES
AND INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANTY
Criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of director
The Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013 and under Regulation l9(4) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s) in
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence ofdirector.

v3



ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRI,CTORS

ANNEXURE "E"

FORMNO,AOC.2

Particulars of contracts/ arrangements made with related parties (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-
section (3) ofsection 134 ofthe Act and Rule 8(2) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/anangements entered into by the
Company with related parties refened to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,2013
including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL
The Company has,not entered into any confact or arrangement or transaction which is not at arm's
length basis during'the year under review.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
The details of madgrial contracts or amangement or transactions at arm's length basis for the year ended
March 31, 2025 ayp as follows:

' 
,.|

Name of the
related party
Nature of
Relationship

Duration of
the Contracts/
Arrangements
/Transactions

Amount
paid as
advauce
s, if any
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

|4/s Norben
.Tea &
Exports
Limited
(Promoter
group
Company)

Purchase oftea
plant/ cutting

12 months Purchase oftea
leaves at
prevailing
market price
based on
standard
industry terms.

NA 14.85 Nil

3t1

Nature of
Contracts/
Arrangements
/Transactions

Salient terms of
the Contracts/
Arrangements/
Transactions

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakhs)



ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXIJRE'F"

THE CRITERIA FOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is

responsible to create a process by which this will occur and will report annually to the Board on the results of
thJ assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of the Board. The

various Committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of their performance and

respective Terms of Reference.
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and Individual
Directors shall also be done as outlined below:
The Compaay will follow a seven step system ofthe following processes for evaluation:
METHODOLOG Y

What the Company hopes to achieve?
Clearly identified objectives will enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and make

decisions about the scppe of the review. Such issues as the complexity ofthe performance problem, the size

of the board, the staje of organisational life cycle and significant developments in the firm's competitive

environment will determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate.

Who will be evaluatdd?
With the objectives t'g. the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be reviewed

to meet them. ,'
The Company needi to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees), individual
directors (including the roles of chairperson and/or lead independent director), and key govemance personnel

(generally the CFO and company secretary).
What will be evalualed?
Having established the objectives of the evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to achieve

those objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation becoming specific. It is now necessary to elaborate

these objectives into a number of specific topics to ensure that the evaluation (1) clarifies any potential
'problems, (2) identifies the root cause(s) of these problems, and (3) tests the practicality of specific

governur". solutions, wherever possible. This is necessary whether the board is seeking general or specific

performance improvements and will suit boards seeking to improve areas as diverse as board processes,

director skills, competencies and motivation, or even boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Internally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, other management personnel and

employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements ofa company's govemance

system.
Externally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review. Similarly,

in some situations, govemment departments, major customers and suppliers may have close links with the

board and be in a position to provide useful information on its performance.

What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives of the evaluation, and the resources available, boards

may choose between a range of qualitative and quantitative techniques.

Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate person is to

conduct the evaluation. If the review is an internal one, the chairperson commonly conducts the evaluation.

However, there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate either to a non-executive or lead director,

or to a board committee. In the case of extemal evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with
expertise in the areas of corporate governance and performance evaluation may lead the process.

What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results ofthe review will be released to the

board in all but the most unusual of circumstances. Where the evaluation objectives are focused entirely on

the board, board members will simply discuss the results among themselves.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Opinion:
we have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ToNGANI TEA COMPANY

LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31",2025, the statement of

Profit & Loss and the cash Flow statement and the statement of changes in Equity for the year ended

on that date, and notes to standalone Financial statements including a summarY of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Standalone

financial statedeflts").

I
ln our opinioq ind to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid finiircial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its profit

and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:
We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on

Auditing specified under section 143{10} of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards

are further described h the Auditals Responsibilities lor the Audit ol the Standalone Financial

Statements sectioo of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code

of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of the Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the

independence iequirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalofle financial statements

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lcAl's Code of Ethics. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters:
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. As per our audit and

verification of books and records and fact finding etc. We have determined that there are no separate

key audit matters applied to this company which are communicated to the audit's .eport. Our audit

report is lnmodified and self-explanatory.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon:
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, corporate Governance Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon

soc
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Report on the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements:



our opinion on standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon'

ln connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent

with the standalone financial statements or our knowtedge obtained during the course of our audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. lf based on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that, we

have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements:
The company,s Board of Directofs are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act') with respect to the prepatation of these Standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial petformance, total

comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the

Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia. This responsibility

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the

Act for safegualding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; .p6lection and appiication of appropriate accounting poiicies; making judgments and

estimates thdt are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of

adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentatiofl of the

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the

company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Besponsibitity for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements:
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with sAs will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

. ldentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an undei.standing of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act,

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

internal financial control systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and reiated disclosures made by management'

conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist

related to events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the company's abilitY to

continue as a going concern, lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditor,s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report However, future

events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern '

. Evaluatg the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair preseotation.

Materiality/is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,

individually' or in aggregate, makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgiable user of the financial statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internat control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those

matters that were of most signlficance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the

current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We described these matters in our

auditor,s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determined that a matter should not be communicatec in our

report becaxse the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by

ks of account;this Report are in agreement with the
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(d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules,2014;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2025,

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,

2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ihe
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"ANNEXURE - A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financiai reporting;

{h) with respect to the other matt€rs to be included in the Auditor's Report in aacordance with Rule

11 of the Ccimpanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended in our opinion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The/company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in

its Standalone financial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses,

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
lnvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Companv.

{iv} (a} The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or €ntity, including

for€ign entity ("lntermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliel no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregatei have been received

by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity {"Funding
Parties"i, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guaraotee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropaiate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us

to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii} of Rule 1L{e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

:
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
requirement of section 197(16i of the Act, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the

Company to its directors during the year is in accordarce with the provisions of section 197 of the
Act;



{d) As stated in Notes to the standalone financial statements

(a) No final dividend was declared by the company in the previous year'

(b) No interim dividend was declared by the Company during the Year'

(c) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend of Rs'7/-

per equity share for the year, which is subject to the approval of the members at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting,

As required by the companies (Auditord Report) Order, 2o2O ('the orde/')' as amended' issued by

the Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (111 of section 143 of the Act, we give in the

,,ANNEXURE- 8", a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 end 4 of the said Order'

Kolkata - 700 001

The 13d'day of M1v,2o25
UDIN: 253154t1 BMNTUC1 1 52

For LILHA & ASSOCIATES
Fi rm Registrqtion N o. 32 8627 E

Chartered At(ountants^ .,--/ ,tr,,iL 1r0 L-
{'0t"1^" -l.ovkush Lilha

MemtrershiP No: 315421
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ANNEXURE _ A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TONGANI TEA {OMPANY LIMITED

Report on the lnternal Financial Control under Clause {i) ofSub-section 3 ofsection 143 ofthe
Companies Act. 2013 fthe Act? - Referred to in paragraDh ff) on the ReDort on other Legal &
Regulatory Reouirements ofour report of even date to the Standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31. 2025:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TONGANI TEA COMPANY

LIMITED ("the Company"), as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone

financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Managemenf s Responsitrility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of internal

Financial controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia.

These responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were'operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliafle financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 201.3.

Audito/s Respohsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidan€e Note") issued lry the lnstitute of
chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedorm the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all material respects-

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, ineluding the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that tratsactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the com pany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

J
I
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Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controis, material misstatements due to error

or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financia! reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
in our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations giv€n to us, the company

has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repofting and

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,2025,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial

controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia.

Kolkata - 700 001.
The 136 day of May,2025

For LILHA & ASSOCIATES
Fi rm Reg is tration N o. 32 8627 E

Chdrtered Accountants

fla^'4n"!"*K;Lf-
Lovkush Lilha

Membership No: 315421
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.ANNEXURE . B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Companv for the year ended March 31. 2025:

1. ln respect ofthe company's - Property, plant and equipment:

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of Fixed Assets. The company does not have any intangible assets'

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to

cover all the items over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to

the size of the company and nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed

assets has physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies

between the book records and the physicalfixed assets have been noticed'

(c) According to the information and explanatio s given to us the records examined by us and based on

examination of the conveyaflce deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title

deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in

the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the Year'

{e) According to infJrmation and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the

year or are per/ding against the Company as at March 31, 2O25 for holding any benami property under

the BenamiTransactions (Prohibition)Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder'

2. ln respect of its Inventories:

(a) The management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals.

. (b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in

aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, turther, the

quarterly returns or statements filed try the company with such banks or financial institutions are in

i agreement with the books ofaccounts

(c) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records

which has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

3, According to the information and explanations gtven to us, the Company has not granted loan or advances

in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any

other parties during the year except an existing loan to a company under same promoter group the

aggregate during the year and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date amounted to Rs.Nil

(Previous Year Rs.52.20 lakhs).

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve

Bank of lndia and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 ot any other re{evant provisions of the Act and the

Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not

applicable.

The cost records pursuant to Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of

the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company and hence the same has not been

4

5

?=

4t

commented upon.



6. (a) The Company isgenerally regularin depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues

including Provident fund, Employees state lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other

statutory dues applicable to it.

{b) According to the informatiofl and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of Provident fund, Employees state lnsurance, ln€ome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutorv

dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when

they become payable.

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and

records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities

are as under:

Name of
Statute

Nature of Dues Financial Year to
which

matter oertains

Amount in

{B{
Forum where

dispute is

pending

1" Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2017-14 3,401.03 ITAT-SMC

SENCH

2 Department of

lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2023-24 4,164.80 ADDLIJCIT(A)-

z

7. There were no transactions that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Hence comment on Paragraph 3(viii) of the said

Order is not applicable.

g. a) As perthe infoimation and explanations given to us and on the basis ofour examination ofrecordsofthe

Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of

interest thereon to any lender. Hence comment on Paragraph 3(ix) of the said Order is not applicable.

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other

lender.

c) The Company has nottaken term loan durin8 the year.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds har,e been raised by the

Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any

funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaried,

joint ventures or associate compan,es, hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(fi of the Order is not applicable.

9. a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or,

convertible debentures {fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is

not applicable.

10. a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section U2) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during

the year.

c) There has been no instance of whistle-blower complaints received by the company during the year under

:J
J.t
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11. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi

company. Hence comment on paragraph 3(xii)(a)(b)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

12. ln our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and l'88 of the

Companies Ac!, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

13. a) ln our opinion the company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the

nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit'

14. According to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not entered

in any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referted in section 192

of the Act.

15. a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve bank

of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {xvi) (a), (b) & (c) of the order are not

applicable to th€ Company and hence not commented upofi.

b) ln our opinion, there is no Core lnvestment Company within the group (as defined in the Core

lnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d)

of the order is nol apilicable.

I
16. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the company ha's not incurred any cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit and in the

im mediately preceding financial year;

17. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. Hence, comment

on paragraph 3(xviii) ofthe said Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageinB

and expected dates of realization of financial assets and paymeot of financial liabilities, other information

accompanying the financial statemenls, our knowled8e of the Board of Directors and management plans

and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no

material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they falt due within a period of one year from

the balance sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up io the date of the

audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall

due;

19, The Company is not required to spend any amount in Corporate Social Responsibilities under the act

Hence, comment on paragraph 3(xxi(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the said Order is not applicabie

20. The company does not have any subsidiary or associate company hence the said clause is not applicable.

For LILHA & ASSOCIATES
Firm Regi strati on N o. 32 8627 E

Ch ar'ter e d A{: c o un tants
Kolkata - 700 001
The 13th day ofMay,zo?S

91,'

Lovkush [,ilha
Membership No: 315421

={*,V*
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB7A93PLCOOO7 42

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2025
Note As at 31st March, 2025
No, Amount

As at 31st 2024
Amount Rs. n

9,71,315.83

1,,776.37

n u

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
FinancialAssets

Trade Receivables

Loans & Advances

other FinancialAssets

Other Non-Current Assets

Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

CURRENT ASSETS
lnventories
Biological Assets other than bearer plants
FinancialAssets

Investments
Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
,

Bank balances other than Note 15

Loans & Advances

otherFinancialAssets i
Other Current Assets

Total Assets
'lrEOUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Equity Share capital,

Other Equity

LIABILIIIES
NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Bofrowings
Trade Payables

other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Qther Liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings
Trade Payables

other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Other Liabilities

Current Tax Liabilities ( Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities
Corporate lnformation

Ba5is ofAccounting

Signifi cant Accounting Policies

Significa nt J udEements & Estimates

The Notes are an i art of the Financial Statements

As per our Reportannexed ofeven date

For Lilhn & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N o.328 627 E

\- r-- o -...\
\-

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
CHAIRMAN

(DIN: 00123386)

/
RAN AN KUMAR JHALARIA

Independent Director
{DIN:05353976)

AIA AGARWALA
nancial Officer

5

1,224.77

3,7t,O74.L4
s7,000.00
25,964,44

10,31,09s.03

4,55,263.39

85,938,X1
726.88

3,06,429.73
3,30,804.46

zl-Dfrhgm

12,65,67O.48

5,6,.,952.36

22,000.00
16,228.58

3,402.82
22,t0,657.60

4,62,009.99

87,797.79
726.88

4,06,5L5.43

2,2L,L97.66

6
7
8
9

10

22
23

24
25

26

27

1

2

3

4

tt
t2

13

t4
15

t6
t7
18

19

20

2t

28

29

30

31

32
33

2L,4O0.O0

4,650.24
25,247.L7

785.03

2,2t,OOO.O0

33,707,25

79,400.00
2,195.80

29,826.80

866.87

2,63,200.00

3L,025.96

21,43,563.58

1a,577,50

12,47,092.98

78,577 .50

77,9L,5'.J,4.89 12,LO ,O92.39

2,37,255.91

64,498.55

45,610.72

5,55,278.55

20,540.00

!4,355.?7
1,932.O9

2,3t,449.85

832,44

2,30,34L.60

4,28,602.98
1,29,874,74

9,47 4.64

4,24,sO3.O5

L,17,508.86

13,266.64

21,,43,563.58

Wuol oS
tt

Lovkush Lilha
Partner
Membership No.315421
Kolkata

J

=

The 13th day of May 2025

UIIN : 253\5\2\ f}Ir. IsTuz. l\S >-

Chief

E6

t

A--^J"-@act--Ia

l; Company Secretary
/Membership No.A37602

3,63,074.L4
68,000.00

29,759.48

232,2a233 9',J"4.3L

62,540.08 
'

46,580.95

i
,i
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01132WB[893PLCOOO7 42

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2025

For the year
Note ended
No. 31st March,2025

Rs. in hundreds Rs. in hundreds

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

Total Income
EXPENSES

Goods Purchased from Garden
Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods,

StockJn-Trade and Work-in-Progress
Employee Benefits Experlse

Finance Costs

I
Depreciation and Amorlisation Expense

Other Expenses I, Total Expenses
Profit before Tax j',
Tax Expense:

Current TaX

Mat Credit
Deferred Tax

Profit/(Loss) for the period
Olher Comprehensive lncome
i.ltems that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

li. lncome tax relating to these items

.' (Net ofTax)

7, Total Comprehensive Income for the period
Earnings Per Share
Nominal Value of Shares (Rs 10)

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary
Shares outstanding during the year

Basic & Dlluted Earnings Per Share

Basis ofAccounting
Significant Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Estimates

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

34
35

8,28,862.7t
33,685.77

8,62,548.48

36

37

38
39

40

4l

42

43

43

2

3

4

798.00

(2,505.rrc)

6,O4,2A836

46,611.58

30 876.36
2,08,950.89

4,580.40

5,60,547.94

58,106.14

27,9663r
1,96,580.73

8,8&918.79 8,47,787.52
64088.63

7,197.82

1,059.28

14,756.96

1,932.09

(s.76)

55,831.53 L2,840.63

1342.4e1
89.05

3,864.4t
(1,004.75)

1253.441 2,859.66

55,578.09 t5,700.29

L,85,775

o.o7

1,,85,775

0.30

As per our Report annexed of even date

For Lilha & Associates

Chartered Accountants

'ffi:!;P:t:

[trr-'*-*L
AIAY HMAR AGARWALA
ChiefFinancial 0fficer

G"i-J^-@ile *Jh

N... \. D
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

CHAIRMAN

(DIN: 00123386)

I dLL'',-a
ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary

Membership No.437602

RANIAN KUMAR JHAUIRIA
IndependeDt Director

(DIN:05353976)
ASs&

fi\a
uDr x,2sts,ts \:.)Brq rruer 4t

INCOME
Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

9,24,64L97
28,325.45

9,53,OO7.42

Partner

Membership No.315421

Kolkata

The 13th day of May 2025



CIN;10113 2W81893Prco00742

HF STATEMENT FOR THE ENDED 31ST MARCH 2

For the For the
Year ended Year ended

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Amount (Rs, in hundreds)

1,14,342.27 69,464.66

3,865.38
11,270.97

(10,900.00)

(19,304.50)

13,967.67

68,991.70
3,832.98

70,720.67
(2,144.271

47,097.92 7,49,765.26

{90,6ss.s6l (1,99,2s3.s01

1,339.30

585.19
32,753.9527,239.30

(B) 163,4t6.261 (1,64s7s.06)

64088.63 L4,766.96

27,9663r
737.76
(8s.1e)

726.63

58,106.14
(32,7s3.9s1

5.00

46,611.58

121,239.301

12,soz.881

14,L40.321
5&000.00

12,681.291

17,20,7s6.881
12,365.88

14e8.471
1,,873.21

(4eo3.60l

4099.93
(13,891.7s)

15,000.00
s3,200.00

40,990.71,
(20,899.271

50,000.00
17,800.00

\e,288.7sI
(58,105.r.4)(46,611.58)

(c) 11,,796.50 20,502.67

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end ofthe year

Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank Balances at the end of the year

14,s21.7 4l
29,808.91

5,692.8!
24,L76.L0

25,247.fi
785.03

29,808.97

884.76

oS

(
{f,

t'
26,O72.2O 30,693.67

TON6ANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax and extraordinary items

Adjustments for :

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses
(Gain)/toss on Disposal of Assets
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of lnvestment
Excess Liabilities Written back
Finance Cost

lnterest Received

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

(lncrease)/Decrease l11 Trade Receivable
(lncrease)/Decrease h lnventories
(lncrease)/Decrease lry lnvestments
(lncrease)/Decrease ln Other Financial Assets
(lncrease)/Decrea!e,in Other Current Assets
lncrease/(Decrease) ln Trade Payable
lncrease/(Decrease) ln Provisions (Net)
lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Current Liabilities
lncrease/(Decrease) In Other Financial Liabilities
Cash generated from operations

, Direct Tax (paid) / Refund (Net)
Net Cash from operating activities

B. gASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

/ Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital Wtp(netof subsidy)
;' Proceeds from Sale ofAssets

/ Proceeds from Sale of lnvestments

_r lnterest Received

' Net Cash used in investing activities

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds/(Repaymentl of Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Secured Current Borrowings from Bank
Proceeds/(Repayment) Secured Non Current borrowing from Bank & Financial lnstitution
Proceeds/(Repayment) Non Current Unsecured Borrowings
Unsecured Loans (Extended) / Receovered
Dividend Paid

lnterest & Finance Charges
Net Cash used in Financing Activities

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

lAl 47,097.92 r,49,76s.26

30,876.36



Note : 1. Figures shown in bracket shows cash outflow.
2. Previous year's Figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Lilha & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.3?8627E

AGARWAtA
Chief Financial Officer

t)

lL,t'
Lovkush lilha
Partner
Membership No.315421

Kolkata
The 13th day of May 2025

rr\rq:2S3lSLr2l Br{t\rr-..rLl lS' -

A.r-J"-@a*.t

A,\

MANO' KUMAR DAGA
CHAIRMAN

(DlN: 00123386)

/ ill*l--,..--
RANJAN KUMAR 

'HALARIAlndependent Director
(DIN:05353975)

'1

.!1

ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary

Membership No.A37602
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : 101132W81893PtC000742

Tongani rea company Limited ("the company'') is an entity incorporated in rndia having crN
No' 101132w81893p1c000742. The registered address of the company is 15B, Hemanta
Basu sarani, Kolkata - 700 001. udyam registration number under Ministry of Micro, sma
and Medium Enterprises (MSME) is UDyAM-wB-10-0oo8246.The principar business of the
company is manufacturing of tea. As per section 149 of the companies Act, 2013 read with
companies (cost records and Audit) Rures,2014, the company is not required to maintain
cost records.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the
rndian_Accounting standards (rnd As) as per the companies (rndian Accounting standards)
Rules,'7015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (,.the Act,,) and other
relev9,6t provisions of the Act.

company's financial statements are presented in rndian Rupees, which is arso its' functional currency.

The standalone rnd AS financiar statements have been prepared on historicar cost basis
except the following items:

a) Financial Assets - current lnvestments in shares - valued at book value instead of
market.

b)

2

c)

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabirities - varued at fair value on Barance sheet approach.
unrealised Gain/Loss on current Investments - The management is of the opinion
that the investment is long term and strategic in nature. The management does not
foresee any dimunitlon in value of these investments; hence no provision is required
to be made' Any Profit / Loss on investment on this wi be recognised in the year of
sale.

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

3.2. Cash Flow Statement and Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash Flow Statements are reported using indirect
extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of
and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash recei
from operating, investing and financing activities of the
on available information

Measurement of Fair Values
The company has financial assets: a) lnvestment in euoted Shares, b) lnvestment in
unquoted shares, - at purchase cost c) Loans & Advances, d) Trade Receivabres - at fair
value, Financial Liabilities - Trade payabres at fair value. rmpact of fair value changes, if
any as on the date of transition, is recognised in the opening reserves and changes
thereafter are recognised in the Statement of profit & Loss during the period.

method, where profit before
tra nsactions of non-cash nature
pts or payments. The cash flows
Com ied based

u
o

6r .)$ryX
A

=

31ST MARCH. 2025

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

3.1.



TONGANI TEA COMPANY TIMITED
CIN : to1l32W81893PtC000742

3.3,

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk or changes in value.

ProDerW. Plant & EouiDment and DeDreriation
Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost less allowable
net recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, overheads directly
attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation on such tangible assets have been provided on straight line method as per
the useful Iife estimated by the management. The management estimates the useful lives
of the fixed assets as follows:

Hence the useful lives for the assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under
Part C of the schedule of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and Leasehold land are not
depreciated.

ImDairInent of Assets
The carrying amount of the property, plant & equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date. lf any indication of impairment exists, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised. An

impairment loss is charged to the Depreciation Schedule and Statement of Profit & Loss

in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired.

-.5so

SERIAT

NUMBER
DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS

L.t Non - Factory Buildings & Bridges
2.r.' Machinery*, Electric lnstallations and

Factory Buildings
30

Furniture & Fittings*, Laboratory & Other
Equipment* &Tubewell

20

4 Motor Vehicles
Computer* 6

6 Bearer Plants* 50

5s Ko

.D

A

*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical
evaluation carried out by external valuers, the management believes that the useful lives

as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets.

3.4.

3.5. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and Provision for Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Assets/Llablllties valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of future
taxable profit against which tax losses and tai benefit carried forward can be used.

Provision for deferred tax recognised on timing differences between the taxable income

and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one

or more subsequent periods enacted as at the reporting date.

t

i

USEFUL LIFE (ln Yearsl

60

3.

15
5.



3.6. Inventories
Items of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of lnventories" guidelines issued by
the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and lnstitute of Cost Accountants of lndia.
The details are as follows:

a) Stock of Raw Materials, Stock of Spares & consumables are valued at Cost on FIFO
(First ln First Out) basis (excluding the amount of Cenvat/tTc of
Excise/Custom/Service TaxlcST/State Tax Allowable).

b) Stock of Finished Goods are valued at lower of Cost (excluding the amount of GST/

credit allowable) or net realizable value.

c) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under section
1424 of the lncome Tax Act, 1961. The financial statements are presented as per
Acgounting Standards under IND AS.

3.7. Finangial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Financial Assets and Liabilities are valued at fair market value. The details are as

befbw:

.1.11 lnvestments are valued at book value. Unrealised Loss and their deferred tax' assets/liabilities are not provided in the Statement of Profit & Loss as per lnd AS

method of presentation as the management is of the opinion that the unrealised
loss is not permanent in nature and that the investment is strategic in nature.

2. Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are valued at fair market value.

3.8. Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event. lt is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimates required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed

. at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

However as per implementation of lnd AS there are no provision made for proposed

dividend, which will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Only the
actual declaration of dividend will be provided on the date Annual General Meeting.

3.9, RevenueRecocnition
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable,
the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or
managerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Reven-ue from operations is measured at the faii'value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account defined terms o[ payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

a ASSo

(('
a5ti

TONGANI TEA COMPANY TIMITED

CIN : 10U32WB1893PtC000742



TONGANI TEA COMPANY TIMITED

CIN : tO1132WB1893PLC0OO742

3.10,

Other lncome & Expenditure

a) lnvestment lncome on actual transaction are recognized on actual basis.

b) lnterest lncome are recognized on accrual basis.

c) Other Expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Employee benefit expenses, which

are shown separately) are recognized on accrual basis.

Finance Cost
Finance Cost includes interest, amortization and other ancillary cost incurred in regard to
borrowings including GECL and GECL extension loan. All borrowing costs are charged to
the Statement of Profit & Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

During the year the company has been granted interest subvention of Rs.10,25,556/-

under Assam Tea lndustry Speclal lncentive Scheme(ATlSlS)2020, which has been

crediteg against interest paid to Bank.

Lons Term Emolovee Benefits
al Defined Contribution Plans

The company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution
plans and the charges as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of
contribution required to be made. The Company makes regular contribution to
Recognised Provident Fund which are fully funded and administered by the Central

Government.

accounted

accounted.

for in the books in the period in whi received and

KOL

Sb

J

erlying service is

3.11. Borrowinps
Borrowing Costs consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the
borrowine of funds.

tL

3.12. hplsyce EcneEtlsEt
, Short Term Employee Benefits
' The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during

the period when the employees render the services

b) Defined Benefit Plans

As per the new Gratuity policy of the Government of Assam, payments are made

towards gratuity for garden employees on a monthly basis with the Assam Tea

Employees Provident Fund Organization.

For employees at the Head office in west Bengal the gratuity liability amount is

directly paid by the company to the retiring or leaving employee out of own fund and

is also having group gratuity fund in nationalised bank,

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plans in respect of post -+mployment are

charged to other Comprehensive.

3.13. GST Inout Credit:
Goods and Services Tax payment elements on purchase/reverse charge/services

received, whichever applied, covered and allowable as IGST/SGST/CGST credit are



TONGANI TEA COMPANY TIMITED
CIN : t01132W81893PtC000742

3.14. Taxes on Income
The provision for current income tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year as determined in accordance with the current provisions of rncome Tax Act,
1961. Provision for deferred tax assets/liabilities is charged to Statement of profit and
Lost measured on differences of Valuation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities from one
Balance Sheet date to the next Balance Sheet date-

The company is also liable to pay Agricultural lncome Tax on the agricultural income
generated during the year. However, as per the notification dated 2g/06/2023, the
Government of Assam has provided a Tax Holiday on Agricultural lncome for the period
of 3 years, i.e. F.Y.2023-24,2024-25 & 2025-26.

3.15. Earnings Per Share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net profit/(Loss) after Tax
includihg Other Comprehensive lncome, i.e. Total Comprehensive lncome, by the
weight6d average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per sh/re is computed by dividing the Net profitT(Loss) after tax including other
compr'6hensive income, i.e. Total comprehensive rncome as adjusted for dividend,

. 
inter6st and other charges to expense or income relating to dilutive potential equity

' shares, by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The company has not
issued any shares during the year and no extraordinary expenses incurred, hence the
basic and diluted earnings per shares are same.

3,16. Dividend
As per lnd As presentation the Dividend appropriated is reflected on actual dividend
declared. There are no provisions made for proposed dividend, which will be approved in
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

3.17. SegmentReporting- 
The company has only one primary business segment, i.e. manufacturing oftea.

Operatinq Cvcle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets
and liabilities as current and non-current.

4. Use of Estimates and Judgments
ln preparation of these standalone lnd AS Financial statements, the management has
made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
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TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CrN No. L0 t 13 2 WB l8 q3qLCOOO? 42Notes to Financial Statements as on aDd fo" af," y"", 

"ri"a af"tMarch,2025

Refer
Note No.

Non Current
As at

3t-03-2025
As at

31-03-2024
6 Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables
Less: provision for doubtful receivables
Total Trade Receivables
Break Up of Security Detaits

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good
Doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful receivables
Total Trade Receivebles

Trade receivables are non_interest bearing

6.3 The ageing analysis of the Trade Receivable

7 Loans & Advatrces
Security Deposits

Unsecured, considered good
Loans & Advances

Unsecured, considered pood
Loans & Advances to related parties
Loans & Advances to other parties

Total Loans

As at
31"03-202s

As at
37-03-2024

Amount(Rs. in hulldreds)

5.1 & 6.2

Total

1,224.77 776.37

1,224.77 7,176.37

1,224.77 7,176.37

6.1
6.2

7,224.77 7,r76.37

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers ofother person. Nor an, tr"d" o,. ;;;,. ;";";;" #",I.'"?1,fl:t::'-:1.:i: .:tpany either severaly or joinly with any
is a partner, a director or a member. 

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectivery in which any director

Non Current

IN

from
dOutstan as atng Ma31st 2025rch, 1st M(3 2024arch, the due datePartilulars

Less than o
months

5 months - 1

Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years More than 3
Years

(i)Undisputed Trad'e rece ivables-considered

7,224.7-l
nU d Tdpute rad rece bles-cons idered

Div) Tradeisputed rece btva idles-cons e red

(iv) Disputed Trad
doubtful

e receivables-consldered

U nd t5 tedu Tp rad rece bles-con ereid d
odgo 2023 4(2

7,776.37

58

7,224.77 7,776.37

----.-----------
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Refer
Note No,

Non Curre[t
As at

31-03-2025
As at

37-03-2024

I Other Financial Assets
Other FinancialAssets
Security & Other Deposits
Unbilled Revenue
Deferred Revenue Expenditure
Non-Current investments
lnvestments in Equity lnstruments
(Valued at Cost)
Other than Trade
Quoted tnvestment (Fulty paid up)
22,60,650 (22,60,650) Equity Shares of

Amount(Rs. in hundreds)

7,44,OOO.OO

7,276.AO

9.00
q000.00

7,44,000.00

7,276.80

9.00

Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. ofRs.lol_ each
Other non-current investments
National Defence Certificates 8.,

)

Book Value of euoted lnvestments
Market Value of edoted tnvestments *

,111"^]lr-1.-*:r, 
o ,lrs term and stratesic in nature. The managementrnvestments; hence no provison is requir€d to be made

lnclude Rs.toOo/:Lirarked lien in favour of Government Authorities.

Other Non-Current Assets

2,77,778,U

10.00

2,77,778.34

10.00
3,77,O74.14 3,63 074.74

2,77,7a834

8,20,842.02

2,77,788.34

2,93,884.50

8.1

I

does not foresee any dimunition in value ofthese

Non Current
As at

3t-o3-2025
As at

31-03-2024
Amount(Rs. in hundredsJ

57,000.00 68,000.00

57,000.00 68,000.00

Advances to others

Advance to Employees
Total Other Assets

10 Non-Current Tax Asset (Net)

Mat Credit Entitlements
Less: Credit Utilised

11 Inventories
(As valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods
Stores and Spares etc

17.1 Refer note no.45 for information on inventories pledged as securities by the Company.
Biological Assets other than bearer plants
FairValue of Biological Assets Otherthan Bearer plants (Unharvested Tea Leaves)

L2

lst March 2025 was 5358 kgs (31.03.202 4 _t342g kgs)

29,759.48

25,964.48 29,759.48

Current
As at

31-03-2025
As at

3L-03"2024
Amou[t(Rs, in hundreds)

39,249.60
42,548.79

-----TtBlIff---------rr%r-rd-______-____-___ jjia

29,759.4A

3,79s.00

A

& o

na

ASS

L2.1 Unharvested tea leaves on bushes as on 3

t-.'ol

726.A8 726.88

TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
-- CIN No. 101132W8189 3q1LCOOOT4Z
Notes to Flnancial Statements as on and for me year enled llst March, 202S

i

t

I
ri

41,856.00
44,0A2.71

t tb.88



TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CtN No. L0t 13 2 WB 1g SZqLCOOOT 42Notes to Financial Statements as on and [o" tfre y"u" 

"oi"a ffst March, 2O2S

13 Investments

The an s ofthe Tra

15 Cash and Cash Equivalerts

Balances With Banks :

'ir:['J:fiinJ* - with schedured Banks

Cash in Hand

79.400

4,650.28 2,195.80

650.28 2,795.80

4,650.28 2,195.80

I 28 2,795.80

4,650.28 2,195.80

As at As at
3t-o3-202 37-03-20245

Amourt(Rs. tn

Face Value at 31-03-202S

Amount(Rs. in

As at 37-03-2024

in hun dreds)

As
Current

s t

10
10
10
10

20,OOO

30,000
10,000.00
11,400.00

00
21.400.00

27,400.00

Trade Receivables
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables
Total Trade Receivables

Break Up ofSecurity Details
5ecured, considered sood
Unsecured, considerJd good

,i

_ 
Less: provision for doubtful receivables'l otal Trade Receivables

.t

Trade receivables 4?e non-interest bearing.74.1

14.2
L4.3

No trade or other receivables are jn:ilrI;:yr "r 
orher officers of the company either severaly or jointty with any

14.1 & 14.2

Total

2,977.62
327.75

27,9A7,80

4,772.79

25054.61tt 
iil},li1fi"rX',11:than Note ls
HDFC (FinalDividend _ 20171
HDFC (Finat Dividend _ 2018i
HDFC (Final Dividend _ 20rqi
SBI (tnterim Dividend _ 2021i
SBt (Final Dividend _ 2021)
SBt (tnterim Dividend _ 2o:21
SBt (Finat Dividend _ 2022)
SBt (Finat Dividend _ 2023i

106.53
110.58
185.94
131.15
85.92

707.94
62.87

81.84
106.53
110.s8
185.94
131.15

85.92
707.94

62.87

1.17 29, 6.E0

Outstand 2025as at 31st MaParticulars
Less than 6

1st M from the edu date6 months - 1 7-2 Years 2 - 3 Yearsi Undis Trad rece btva les-cons idered More than 34650.28Und uted Trad ceare bt se n-co s ide red
D uted I rade rece rya b idles-cons dere

Undisputed Trade receivables-considered
2,195.80

AS&

((\
a

os

6o

785.03 865.87

13,1 lnveshnents at Fair Value through profit or Lossrnvestments in Unquoted Shares

Equity Shares of Newar Securities pvt Ltd
Equtty shares of Satyam Ores pvt Ltd
Eouitv Shares ofAuckland Tradins pvt Ltd
Equtrv 5hares of GRC Securities h/t. Ltd.

Total CurTent Investments

Aggregate Book Value ofthe Investment

14 llade Receivables

50,000 25,0oo.oo16,500 33,0oo.oo
2O,OOO 10 OOO.OO30,000 11,4OO.OO

----7s,-40o-0d-

79,400.00

i

t

\

zozt



TONGANI TEA COMPANY I,IMITED
- CIN No.10113ZWB1893qLCOOO742
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year eided 31st March,2O2S

Refet
Note No.

Current
As at

3l-03-2025
As at

3L-03-202417 Loans &Adyances
Unsecured, considered sood
Loans & Advances to related parties
Loans & Advances to other parties

Amount(Rs. in hundreds)

77.1&77.2

52,200.00
Total Loans

No Loans are due from directors or other officers ofthe company either

loan are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any d
Details of loans and advances to related oarties as reouired bv sec. lg6of

2,27,OOO.OO 2,11,000.00

17.1

17.2

2,27,O00.00 63,200.00
severally or iointly with any other

irector is a partner, a director or a
the Comoanies Act. 2013

person. Nor any

member,

Balance Maximum
As at

31-03-2025 As at
3t-o3.2025 31-03-2024ount(Rs. in

As at
37-03-2024

i Norben Tea & Exports Limited
ii. Purpose for which the loan was provided

Financial assisitancgto enterprise over which KMp have
stgniticant influence

I
18 Other Financiat Afsets

lnterest Receivable
Rent Receivable
Deferred R6venue Expenditure

19 Other Current Assets
Advance against supply of Goods & Servicesprepaid Expenses

Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities
Aovance to Employees

Total Other Current Assets

Am hundreds) IN
52,200.00 93,000.00 7,44,Ooo.oo

52,200.00 93,000,00 1,44,OOO.OO

Current
As at
3r-03-2025

As at
37-03-2024

Amount(Rs. in hundreds)

33,707.25

33,707.25 025.963

2,91,474.60

r,746.04
79,029.70
t8,554,72

7,80,2L4-27
2,757.64

27,a67.03
76,964.72

i 20 Equity Share Capital
20.1 Authorised Share Capital

Equity Share Capitalof Rs.10/- each
Preference Shares of Rs.1OO/_ each

20.2 tssued Share Capital
Ordinary Shares of Rs.1O/_ each

20.3 Subscribed and paid-up Shar€ Capital
Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/_ each fully paid_u

20.4 Reconciliation ofthe number ofshares at
Opening Number of Sha rcs as on OUU\2O24
Add: Change durint the year

3,30,804.46 2,27,797.66

As at 31-03-Z0Zs As at 31-03-2024
No. ofshares Amount No, ofShares Amountin hundreds) Amou nt(Rs. in

8,00,000

20,000
80,000.00

20,000.00
8,00,000

20,000
80,000.00

20,000.00

p

a,20,ooo 00,000.00 8,20 000 1,00,000.00

7,85,775 74,577.50 7,45,775 78,577.50
1,85,775 77.50 7,85,775 18,577.50

1,85,775 t4,577.50 7,a5,775 78,577.s0
7,85,77s 78,577.50 7,85,775 74,577 -50

the beginningand att]le end of the year

closing as on J1l3/2025
7,85,775

There has been no change/ movements in numberofshares outstanding atthe beginning and at the end ofthe20.5 Terms/ Rights attached to Equityshares I
The Company has only one class of Ordinary shares having a face value of Rs.1O per share and each holdershares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposedby the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meetings. The claim ofOrdinary Shareholders on ea rnings and on assets in the event of liquidation,

7,45,77s

shareholding.

6,{

follows all others, in proportion to their

30,742.76
283.20

I



TONGANI TEA COMPANY I,IMITED
cIN No. L01132WB1B93PLCo0o7 42Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the yearended 3lstMarch, Z02S20.6 Shareholding pattern with respect ofHolding or Uttimate Holding CompanyThe Company does not have any Holdi ng Company or Ultimate Holding Company20.7 Detaits ofEquity Shareholderc holding more than Solo shares in the Company

As at 31-03-2025
No. ofshares %

As ar 37-03-2024

Ordinary Shares of Rs.lol_ each fully paid
Manoj (umar Daga
Shanti Devi Daga
Jyoti Devi Daga
Visioncraft lndustries (tndia) private Limited
No- ordinary shares have been reserved for issue und
disinvestment as at the Balance Sheet date.
The,Company has not allotted any equity shares against
pard up by way of bonus shares. The company bought b
31.03.2018.

43,383 29.35% 43,383 23.35%42,732 23,OO%
42,3s5 22.80% 42,732 23.00%

2o,4oo to.sa% :?,:ro,' 13;.321
er options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/

consideration other than cash nor has allotted any shares as fully
ack 60,000 equity shares @ 5OO per sharu arringit" y"u, u-nJ;

No. ofShares %Holding

20.a

20'9 No securities convertibre into Equity/ preference shares have been i20'10 No c€'s are unpaid bv anv Director or officer of the corrr, orr,"jillXl]the 
companv durins the vear

20.11 Disclosure of shareholdings by promoters
Shares held ro at the end of the ar

Otler Equiry
General Reserve

Retained Earnings
Other Reserves

General Reserve
Balance atthe beginning ofthe year
Other Adjustments
Balance at the end ofthe year

Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning ofthe year
Add: profit for the year

As at
3t-03-2025

As at
3t-03-2024

tn2t

4,18,067.67

8,02,425.37

5 600.00

4,38,067.67

7,46,847 -28

6,600.00
21.1 12,47 ,O92.98 71,97,574.89

434,067 .6t 43A,067 .67

4,18,067.67 4,38,067.67

7,46,U7.28

5s,578-09

I,O2,4,5.37 7,56.,136.03

9,288-75

9,288.75

19,288.7s
4,02,425.37 7,46,847.28

600.00

6,000.00 6 000.00
5,600.00 6,600.00

27.2

7,40,435.74

75,700.29

Balance at the end ofthe year
21.3 Other Reseryes

Capital Reserves
Balance at the end ofthe year
C"pitat Redemption Reserve

Balance at the end ofthe year
Total Other Reserve
Total Reserve & Surplus

A5 at lst3 arcM 2025h, A5 at 1st3 March 0242Promoter's Name No, ofShares
in hundreds

%ot total
shares

% Change
during the year

No. of Shares
in hundreds

MANO] KUMAR DA

% of totalshares

43383 23.552 43383 23.352SHANTIDEVI DAGA
42732 23.002 42732 23.002t\4 OJN MKU R HDAGA FU 1080 0.581 1080 0.581DIVISHA DA64
4500 2.422 4500 2.422JYol DEV| bAGA

42355 22.799 42355 22.799PALTAVI DAGA
4500 2.422 4500 2.422N U) M NVESTM ENIs TOL 650 0.350 6s0 0.350

62

12,47 ,092,98 1 514.89

Add:Reclassification of financial instrumentsfrom OCI to Retained Earnings

Less: Appropriation
Final Dividend

600.00
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for tfre yeai enaea afst Uarclu ZOZS

NON.CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities

Refer
Note No,

Borrowings
Tenn Loans
Secured

Rupee Loans

From Banksl
Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line From SBI
1,uaranteed Emergency Credit Line Extn From SBI
Vehicle Loan from SBt

From Others:
Machinery under Tea Board Hire purchase Scheme

._. 
(Secured by Hypothecation ofthe related assets

_lThe 
entire principal amount is overdue)

Unsecured
From Body Corporates
From Others
Total Amount disctosed under the head ,,Other 

Financial Liability,,
Break Up of Securit! Details

Secured

Unsecured . i
; Total

Tradepayabtes /
Dues to Micro and Sftall Enterprises
Dues to Creditors oi,Her than Micro & Small Enterprises

For Goods

For Services & Others

Non Curent
As at As at

3t-o3-2025 37-03-2024
Amount(Rs. in hundreds)22

22.1

23

24 OtherFinancialLiabilities
Unpaid and unclaimed dividends
Employees related Liabilities' Amount payable for Capital Goods
Other Payables

24.7

25

Contingent tiability (acquhed
Combinations, if any)
As per AS 15 - provision for gratuity

26 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Arising on account of:
Propert, plant & Equipment
FinancialAssets

Lessl Deferred Tax Assets
Arising on account of:
Sedion 438 of lncome-tax Act
Brought Forward Unabsorbed Losses

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
27 Other Liabitities

Statutory Dues
Others

19,197.74 79,397.14

9,681.09
2,371.62

1,60,000.00

40,000.00

2L,649-69

4,294.77

1,60,000.00

2s,000.00
2,37,449.8s 2,30,347.60

31,449.85

2,00,000.00
45,347.60

1,85,000.00
2,37,449.85 2,30,347.60

24.7

from Business

77.25 77.25

There-are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education andProvisions Protection Fund at the year end

412.48 974.37

62,540.0A 64,498.55

62,540.08 64,498.55

63,76A.04 62,L97.87

16,587.09 76,587.09

16,587.09 16,587.09:J

tr.
SO

6,3

46,580.95 45 L0.72

---.--.-.....-..

767.23 843.06

Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Taxes

63,168.04 62,797.8r

t

I
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 3 lst March, 2_!Z!=-
Current

CURRENT LIABILTTIES
Financial Liabilities

Refer
Note No.

As at
3t-03.2025

As at
31-03-2024

Amount[Rs. in hundreds)28 Borrowings
Secured
Rupee Loans
From Banks;
Loans Repayable on Demand

Working Capital Loan from Banks SBt Cash Credit

Working Capital Loan from Banks SBI Stand by line of Credit
Other Loans

Guarateed Emergency Credit Line from SBI (payable within l year)
Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line Extn From SBt
Vehicle Loan from SBI (payable within l year)

28.2

29

3,59,606.95

45,478.75

3,58,220.49

45,019.51

71,666.76

1,911.10

7,952.67

17F66.76

7,643.62
4,2a,502.98 4,24.503.05

4,28,602.9A 4,24,s03.05

i

4,24,602,98 4,24,503.051 

-

Terms and condiUqls of Borrowings
(secured by way of 

lrpothecation of company's entire stock of tea crops, green leaves,stores,spares,book debts,other
current assets,. unensumbered movable machinery & other fixed assets both present and future pertaining to company,s
garoen. tqultable mortgage over Tea Estate measuring about 235.67 hectares and personal guarantee of the promoter
Director is Rs.432.OO lakhs).

Tmde Pafibles
bues to Micro and Small Enterprises 2g.2
Dues to Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises

For Goods

For Services & Others t,29,874.74 1,17,508.86
7,29,874.74 1,77,508.a6

29.1 The agein8 analysis of the Trade payable

Disclosure as required under the Micro, small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to the extent ascertained,

and as per notification number GSR 679 (E) dated 4th September,2015. The company has compiled this information based

on intimation received from the suppliers of their status as Micro or small Enterprises and/or its registration with
appropriate authority under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act").

1 PrincipalAmount Due and remaining unpaid
2 lnterest due on (1) above and unpaid interest
3 lnterest paid on all delayed payments under MSMED Act
4 Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year
5 lnterest due and payable for the period of delay other than (3) above
6 lnterest Accrued and remaining unpaid
7 Amount offurther lnterest remaining due and payable in succeeding years

of paymentOutstanding for fol lowing periods from due date

year
an

1-2 years 2-3 years
n

years
ore

Total
(i) MsME

(ii)Others 1,29,874.74 1,29,874.74
t pu ues-MS

ues er5D

Others (2023-24 1,17,508.86 1,17,508.86

SI. No. Particula15
31-03-202s 3t-03-2024

64

28,1 The above amount includes
Secured Borrowings 

./
Unsecured Borrowings'

Particulars

A5 at A5 AI

Amount(Rs. in hundreds)
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Notes to Finalcial Statements as on atrd for the year ended 31st March, 20Zs

30 Other Financial Liabilities
Unpaid and unclaimed dividends
Employees related Liabilities
Amount payable for Capital Goods
Other Payables

30.1

from Business

Current
As at As at

31.03.2025 31-03-2024
Amount(Rs. in hurdreds)

1,474.64 73,266.64

22,000.00 20,540.00

16,223.58 14355.37

76,228.58 74,355.37

3,402,A2 r,932.09

30.1

31

_ 3,474.64 73,266.64TherearenoamountsdueforpaymenttothelnvestorEducationandProtectionF,nd,,._
Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
provision for Taxes 2e000.00 20,540.00

Contingent Liability (acquired
Combinations, if any)
As per AS 15 - provision for gratuity

32 Other Liabilities
Statutory Dues l
Others

33 Current Tax Liabilities a Netl
Provision for Taxation
Less: MAT Credit I
Closing Balance 1

For the year
ended

3t-o3-2025

For the year
ended

3L-03-2024

34 RevenuefromOperations
Sale of products

- Tea

Other Operating Revenues

5 Other lncome
lnterest lncome

On Loans

Rent

Profit on Sale of lnvestments
Excess Liabilities Written back
Other Miscellaneous lncome

37

39 Finance Costs
lnterest Expenses

Jo Banks on Term Loans
" Banks On Working Capital Loans
" others

Other Borrowing Costs
Other Financial Charges

Amount(Rs. ln hundreds,

9,24,6A1.97 8,28,a62.7r

9,24,681.97 8,2a,862.77

9,24,6A7.97 8,28,862.77

32,753.95

120.00

85.19

726.63

Value ofConsumption ofRaw Materials represents only6reen leafpurchased from third parties
Changes itr Inventories oI Finished Goods, Stock_In_Trade and Work"in_progress
Finished Goods

i

l

Opening Inventories
Closing lnventories

Total changes itl inventories ofwork-in"progress, stock.in-hade and ffnished goods
38 Employee Benelits Expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Gratuity

39,249.60
41,856.00

43,830.00
39,249.60

4,71,025.95
48,652.99

r,29A29.!O
1s,180.32

4,05,522.70
49,526.58
91,698.00
13,700.66

7,7?5.37
[s,497.96
22,769,58

73,420.04
22,947.43
20,072.43

7,174.67 7,126.24

J

fr.
SO

46,611.54 5&106.14

Refer
Note No,

36 Cost ofMaterials Consumed

27,239,30

120.00

966.15

a:t
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Notes to Financial Statemelts as oD and for the year ended 31st March, ZO25

Refer
Note No.

Current

As at As at

42 Tax Expensel
Current Tax
Mat Credit

' Deferred Tax

43

. 43.1

Items that will be reclassified to profft or loss
43.2 Others

Less: Tax expense on the above

--+Ei6Effi1-
37,572.77
77,305.34
2,565.77
8,437.79

779.62
76,284.27
!6,937.97

1,500.00

3,021.58
440.52
137.76

35,O40.67
91,316.19
2,733.84

10,093.23
280.60

16,154.28
14,061.75
1,500.00
3,592.34

455,97

5.00
2,000.00

770,00
5,148.48
7,728,4A

24,670.0s

770.00
1,856.60

704.80
28,267.20

2,08,9s0.89 1,96,s80.73

700.00
300.00
s00.00

700.00
300.00
500.00

7,797.a2

1,059.28

7,932.09

(s.76)

lncome Tax for earlier years

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will be not be reclassified to prolit or loss

Remeasurement ofthe defined benefit plans
Less: Tax expense on the above 3,864.4r

l7,OO4.7s)
12s3.441 2,859.66

Total (2s3.44 9.65

6o

-+,--*lA1ffii,"#L40 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
On Tangible Assets

41 Otler ExDenses
Manure, Stores, Spare parts & packing Materials Consumedpower & Fuel

Repairs to Buildings
Repairs to Machinery
Repairs to Other Assets
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Commission & Brokerages
Auditors, Remuneration
Rent, Rates & Taxes
lnsurance
Loss on Sale ofAsset
Loss on Sale of lnvestment
Deferred Revenue Expendlture Written off
Directors' Fees &Fommission
Legal and professi;nal Charges
Travelling & Cooveyance Expenses
Administrative Exienses

I
41.1 Auditors' Remun4ation

Statutory Auditors
Audit Fees
TaxAudit Fees
Others

l?42.491
89.05
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Notes to Financiar sillJ"";l'.1ff f.1::'.ffi:::ffi.. r*t March, 2 ,zs
44 Contingetrt Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

44.1 Claims/Disputes/Demands not acknowl edged as debts -

44.2 ln respect of the matters
judgements/decisions pend
reimbursements to be made

45 Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

.46 ln accordance with the Guidance Note
uisite disclosure is as fol

on Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
lows:Activities, the re

46,L

46.2 Amount spent duri ng the year on:

in note no. 44.1, future cash outflows are determinable only on receipt of
ing at various forums/ authorities. Furthermore, there is no poisibilities of any
to the company from any third party.

PERIOD FORUM
NAME OF
STATUTE

NATURE
OF DUES

As at
3t-o3-202s

Rs. in hundreds

As at
31-03-2024

Rs. in hundreds
2017-18 |TAT-SMC BENCH /

(APPEALS) _ 2

C.I.T

2023-24

Department of
lncome Tax

Oepartment of
lncome Tax

lncome
Tax

lncome
Tax

ADDVJC|T(A)-2 /
c.r.T (APPEALS) - 2

3,401.03

4,t64,aO

8,367.7s

4,164.80

As at
3t-o3-2025

Rs. in hundreds

As at
37-03-2024

Rs. in hundreds

5,875.05 3,372.77

5,87s.0s 3,372.77

85,938.11 a\797.79

87,797.79

91,813.15 85,169.96

2,315.05
3,87,38t,80
6,39,9A2.84

2,316.05
3,65,816.82

6,O7,768.62

10,29,580.69 9,69,907.49

11,21,493.a5 10,55,071.45

Total current assets pledged as security

urniture, fittings and equipment acquired under finance lease
Total non-currents assets pledged as security
Total assets pledged as security

.1t

Current
Financial assets

First charge
Trade Receivables

Floating charge
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Non-financial assets
First charge
lnventories

Non.current
First charge
Frfehold land
Freehold buildings

Particulars
Amount

rossG Am o ntU u re tod b s nteReq th comep n duby thepa ang ye
laRe dte Pa transact onsrty as e r dn 24AS np re oati tn CSRo Ex ne ditu ep

rovrP tos mn da n e tia no o Rcs ne d it reu

N.A

N.A

N.A

Particulars
ln Cash

Yet to be

id in cash
Total

nstruction/ Acquisition of any asset
On purpose other above

Co

oI

Sl. No.

a

b

85,938.11

Sl. No.

I

I

I



TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Financiar s,"'llll;l'.1',11Hi11?il1;:::f.'". r"t March, 2o2s
47 certain trade receivables , loans & advances and creditors are subject to confirmation. In the opinion of the

management, the value of trade receivables and loans & advances on realisation in the ordinary course of
busin€ss, wifl not be ress than the varue at which these are stated in the barance sheet.

48 Related Party Disclosures
48,1 Other related parties with r /hom hansactions have taken place during the year and previous year are:

Key Management personnels

48.2 f1a1sn61is1s during the year

48.3 Balance Outstanding as at the balance sheet date

Nature Name
JYOTI DEVI DAGA

SHANTI DEVI DAGA

INDIVIDUALS HAVING
SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE OVER

REPORTING ENTITY

Nature Name of the an
NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LI MITED

Name of the Company in which
Directors/ Key Managerial

Personnel and their relatives have
significant influence

Nature Name D
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA DIRECTOR
RANJAN KUMAR JHATARIA DIRECTOR

SWATI AGARWAL DIRECTOR
SUMANA RAYCHAUDHURI DIRECTOR
SUKH PAL SINGH cEo
AJAY KUMAR AGARWALA cFo
ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHUR COMPANY SECRETARY

2024-25 2023-24

Particulars

Individuals
having

Significant
lnfluence

over
reporting

Companies in
which KMP

are
interested

KMP

Individuals
having

Significant
Influence

over
reporting

Companies
in which
KMP are

interested

Agricultural purchases

Directors Sitting Fees

Dividend Paid
770.0O

14,850.00

770.00

2,780.40 4,254.35

14,850.00

Particulars As at
3t 03-2025

As at
3t-o3-2024

Agricultural purchases
NIL

Directors Sittin Fees
NIL NIL

6g

KMP

entity

NIL



TONGANI TEA COMPANY LIMITED
CIN No. L01 13ZWB1 A9ZPLCOOOT 42

Notes to Financlal Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2oz5

48.4 Terms and Conditions of transactiosn with Related parties

No specific terms & conditions.

49 No undisputed statutory dues remained outstanding as on 31.03.2025 for the period more than six months fromthe date from which they became payable.

50 During the Financial year 2015-16 |TAT passed an order vide ITA No.L12 2/KOU2Ot2 dated 24-11-2015 in favourof the Company, whereby the Hon,ble Authority allowed Rs 5,8405.2 6 (Rs. in hundreds) as total unabsorbeddepreciation loss to be carried forward which comprises:

51a No p rovision for Agricultural lncome Tax has been made for the current year in view of the Agricultural IncomeTax Holiday for three yeArs granted by the State ofAssam since Fina ncial Yea( 2022-2023.5lb Tax Expenses every yea!
YeaI 2020-2021,, due to substantial expansion in t

reckoned after taking Into account deduction

he value of plant & machinery in the

u/s 80lE of the tncome Tax Act, 1962,upto the Financial
Financial Year -2011-20i 2

52 During the year the company has been granted interest subvention of Rs.1o,2s6.ss (Rs. in hundreds) underAssam Tea rndustries speciar rn^centives scheme (ATrsrs), 2020, extended upro F.y,2027-28, which has beencredited against interest paid to Bank.

53 The company has sufficient liquidity for continuing its business operations. The company is also confident aboutits ability to service its debt and other financial liabilities.

54 Ratio Analysis:.

Serial No. Nature of Loss Assessement

Year
A ount
ln hundredsl

r Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1986-87 8,071.33
2 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1987-88 12,020.80

Unabso rbed Depreciation Loss 1988-89 20,o80.7s
4 Unabsorbed Depreciation Loss 1998-99 18,232.38

Current ratio Total Current Asset Total Current Liabilities
7.20 0.00Debt Equity Ratio Debt capital Shareholder's Equity 0.52 0.54 -0.o2Debt Service coverage ratio EBITDA-CATEX Debt Service (Int+Principal) o.20 0.06Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year Average Shareholder,s Equity 0.04 0.01 0.03lnventory Turnover Ratio Net Tumover Avemge Inventory 11.03

Trade Receivables turnover ratio Ne1 Tuhover Average trade receivables 156.25 43.74
rade payables turnover ratio

Total (Fuel
Cost + Other Average Trade Payables 7.67 2.42 -0.75

Net capital turnover ratio Sales Workimg capiral (CA-CL) 7.66 7.02 0.64Net profit ratio Net Prcfit Sales o.o7 0.02 0.05
Return on Capital employed Earnings biEre interest

and tax CapitalEmployed 0.o7 0.02
Return on investment Net Profit lnvestment 0.05 0.01 0.04

J

c

69

3

Ratios Numdrator Denominator [*T,:::'-- Previous

1.20

0.74

9.48

0.05
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 20Zs

55 There are no proceeding initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transaction (Prohibition) Act, L988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Hence no disclosure required.

55 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the financial year hence no disclosure required
for the same,

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our Report annexed of even date t>N'- \
For Lilha & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrauon N o.328627E, )tY,,'h,:l'ffiL-"-
Lovkush Lilha
Partner
Membership No.3154
Kolkata
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The 13th day ofMay 2025
ublNl 2 s?Is h),\ Br'1 NTL! c I I S )__

AJAY AGARWALA
Chief Financial 0tficer

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

CHAIRMAN
(DIN: 00123386)

R
RANJAN KUMAR IHALARTA

Independent Director
[DIN:05353976)

A-;Ja--@-der^^.Ja

ASs

$'o
*,

7o

57 Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND AS and the
requirements laid down in the Schedule- of the Companies Act, 2013.

ARINDAM ROYCHOWDHURY

Company Secretary
Membership No.A37602
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